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- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - CHAIR MOLINA: .. , (gavel). .. Committee of the Whole meeting for November 1st is now in session. Good
morning, Members. For the record, we have in attendance Members Kane, Carroll, Mateo, Hokama,
Pontanilla and Tavares. Excused are Members Johnson and Anderson. Thank you for being here,
Members. You look very bright-eyed and bushy-tailed on this day after Halloween.
We've had a series of very long meetings over the last few weeks, so I appreciate all of you being here
this morning. We've got several interesting items on our docket this morning, but before we do that the
Chair would also like to introduce the staff members. We have Richelle Kawasaki, as well as
Shelly Espeleta and Gayle Revels from staff, and our Committee Secretary this morning is
Clarita Balala.
Before we address our agenda items, the Chair will entertain testimony from the public. As your name
.
to coming up, please be informed that you'll be given three minutes to testify
turn
state

A~~

I
~
issue of the elimination of the Sunshine Laws or allowing the County Council to make its own Sunshine
Rules.
I don't know of any group that has worked harder to earn our distrust, and I say that not in anger or
bitterness but in great sadness. There seems to be a committed philosophy of taking from the poor and
giving to the rich. May I mention that property tax reform started on this island. I believe that we were
the first County to address property tax reform and our accomplishments are zero, where the other
counties started after us and are already finished.
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Broken circuit, circuit breaker, two years that that existed. Thank you, Bob, for finally fixing that. Two
years while the poor were taxed off of their properties in two years. And on giving the money away,
$1 million for your political friend for a playground, $1 million in public money: 800,000, construction;
150,000 for design plus well way over 50,000 support from the Parks Department that isn't accounted
for in the previously mentioned. We could have built ten playgrounds for that.
Kihei, we were without, we were without swings at our super playground for I think about eight months.
Why? We couldn't afford sand. We couldn't afford sand to put underneath the swings. Pukalani pool,
legendary problems; Haiku playground, minimal support. They wanted $10,000 for a little fix 'em up.
No, we don't have money for that, but we do have a million dollars for your political friend.
$6.5 million to the Maui Visitors Bureau in public money for lobster, champagne, first-class hotel rooms
while the rest of us here on Maui are suffering with problems with our infrastructure. Social services
grossly unmet, $6.5 million in public money to the Maui Visitors Bureau of which 3.5 million comes
from this Council.
And now, you're talking about going behind closed doors. No way. I would like to see this proposal for
elimination of the Sunshine Rules or for the County to be allowed to do its own Sunshine Rules to be
defeated this morning. I was going to say eight to one but we have two missing, so we'll go six to one.
It's absolutely, totally inappropriate. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Joiner. Committee Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you, Mr. Joiner.
Next testifier we have Pat Borge, to be followed by Melissa Prince. And prior to Mr. Borge's testimony,
the Chair would like to recognize from the Corporation Counsel's office, Mr. Edward Kushi.
MR BORGE: Good morning, Council.

I mean
you
a
I mean
crossroads, either we going to
or we're not.
you people are forgetting
in this matter, and, and to see there's so much money involved right now a lot of things can happen
behind closed doors. And you know, a lot of times there's development going on, and we say, okay
we're going to take care the host culture, which is the Hawaiians, but there's other people that live here
that's been here four or five generations. Don't forget us.
And this Sunshine Law, I would like to see you guys be involved in more public hearings. That's the,
that's the thing about this Sunshine Law. I think there should, you should get involved in more public
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hearings, more public hearings during the evening when the local people who works two, three jobs can
come to these meetings.
It was very hard for me to come here this morning, but when I saw that you guys were going to try to
exempt this Sunshine Law, I had to make an effort to come down here and tell you, no, it's wrong, and
you know it's wrong. I don't even know why it's even brought up.

But that public hearing is very important. We gotta have more public hearings on this island. Maui is
growing so fast that you people are not even concerned about our natural resources. You know it's about
money, but you know sometimes money is not everything. You know it's the way of life is very
important, too. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Borge. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you. Next to testify is Melissa Prince. If there's anyone else that would like to testify, you have
an opportunity to sign up with the secretary up here. Proceed.
MS. PRINCE: Good morning, everyone. My name is Melissa Prince, and I am here to testify in support of
keeping the Sunshine Laws for the County Council proceedings. I think that it's, we hear this time and
time and again where a decision is made behind closed doors, and then the next thing you know the
bulldozers are going over someplace, and the community finds out about it after the fact, and then the
next thing you know there's a big fight in court over it, and the thing gets dragged out and put on delay.
And I think it all happens because the public is not included in on the decision-making from the start.
A perfect example, just recently there was a meeting out in Hana -- you can read about it in the latest
Haleakala Times -- with the Hana Ranch Estates. And from the article what I gathered is that the Hana
Ranch Estates is planning to build some affordable housing, and it implied that Everett Dowling is going
to be the one to build the homes. And so, some of the community members were saying, we feel like we
were left out of the loop, that the decision was that it's a done deal, and this decision-making was made
words, it sounds like it was a behind closed doors, secret decision ,vithout
on
it seems
a

So, I encourage you to please keep the open Laws, the spirit of the Sunshine Law open.
what I
understand, the, they say the Legislature exempted themselves but made their own rules. If there are any
rules that you find that are overly burdensome, then, then maybe tweak the law, so that it's, you know,
so you can meet for your birthday parties or whatever. But don't just toss it out. I, I really support
openness in government and transparency and being above-board. So, I want to thank those of you
Council Members that are trying to do that, and that's what I have to say. Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Prince. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you. Members of the public, you have one last opportunity to testify. It's still open if you
would like to come up and testify, this is your opportunity right now. Is there anyone that would like to
testify on any of our agenda items today? One last call. Seeing none. If there are no objections,
Members, the Chair will close public testimony for today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Members. Let us first address our Item No. 1 on the list.
Committee of the Whole 36, Disaster Preparedness.
COW-36

DISASTER PREPAREDNESS (C.c. No. 05-310)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 05-310 from Councilmember
Dain Kane relating to the matter of the County's disaster preparedness. The Committee may receive a
presentation from the Red Cross, as well as a possible overview from the Civil Defense Agency. And
the Chair, for the Committee's information and the public's information, we did invite the Civil Defense
Director, Mr. Gen Iinuma to give the Committee a brief overview on this matter. Mr. Iinuma did
commit to us earlier last week; however, we were informed late Friday that Mr. Iinuma would not be
here. And to date, I don't believe we have a representative from Civil Defense here to share their
thoughts with the Committee.
So, I would like the Committee Members to know that, and this is in light of not only the concerns
expressed.from Member Kane. I believe Member Mateo also sent a transmittal to the Committee with
regards to disaster preparedness on the island of Molokai. And your Chair, having gone out to the
community, having heard concerns from especially the senior citizen segment of our v"'~~~u~u
to

So, prior to recognizing the Members, well first of all, before we go into the presentation, is there any,
any comments being made from the body? Member Kane, as the introducer of the proposal for today,
do you have any comments prior to our presentation from the Red Cross?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No. Mr. Chair, I do not, and thank you for that opportunity. But I'll yield to the
presentation and then look forward to the discussion. Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. So at this time, we shall call a brief recess to get our
screen set up, and we shall reconvene at 9:20.

RECESS:

9:15 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:19 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel). .. Committee of the Whole meeting for November 1st is now back in session.
Thank you very much, Members, for that break.
We are about to embark on a presentation from Anna Foust of the American Red Cross with regards to
civil defense and Committee of the Whole Item 36, relating to disaster preparedness. Prior to the
presentation from Ms. Foust, the Chair would like to recognize Member Anderson for her attendance
this morning. Ms. Foust, you may go ahead and take hold of the mike.
MS. FOUST: Thank you very much. Can everyone hear? Am I holding this close enough to my mouth?
Thank you. Before I start, I would very sincerely like to thank you for having me come this morning
and have the opportunity to talk about what the Red Cross role is during disaster in terms of
preparedness and response.
I will be addressing our current level in terms of volunteer response and what we will be able to do, and
I'll also address some vulnerabilities as we see them from the Red Cross. I think it's important because I
think there are a lot of miscommunications and misinterpretations of what the Red Cross role is during
disaster, and I do thank you for the opportunity to bring that to the public attention.
My name, as has been mentioned, is Anna Foust. I'm the Disaster Coordinator for the Maui County
Branch of the American Red Cross, and I have been with the American Red Cross since May of 2004.

Red Cross is a humanitarian organization. We are non-profit. We are not a government organization,
which I think is one of the public misperceptions. We are funded by donations of the American public,
and we are also, it says, led by volunteers. Nationwide, the Red Cross has a 97 percent volunteer staff
Here on Maui, it's even higher than that. I'm the only disaster staff person for the County of Maui, so I
rely very heavily on volunteers.
As you see there, it says that we provide relief to victims of disaster, and more important -- I shouldn't
say more importantly -- as importantly we also help people prevent, prepare for, and respond to
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emergencies. And I think that, in light of what we've seen with Katrina and then Rita and now Wilma,
that preparation portion cannot be stressed enough.
The Red Cross is guided by fundamental principles, and these are international Red Cross movement
principles. And those include humanity, neutrality, independence, voluntary service, impartiality, unity,
and universality. Some things that I wanted to highlight here. Again, we're a humanitarian
organization. We're here to provide immediate emergency needs caused or exacerbated by a disaster.
That's also very important for people to understand.
As far as neutrality, we are non-discriminatory. We do not take sides in any kind of conflict. We are
independent, as I mentioned, of the government. While we do work alongside the national government
in terms of working alongside FEMA, as part of the national response plan, we do maintain our
independence. And I think I've already addressed some of those other points there, but those are the
International Red Cross founding principles.
The services that are provided by the American Red Cross include disaster services, health and safety
services, military members and families, and youth services, as well as throughout the County, they also
do bio-medical services and community services.
Here in Hawaii, our Chapter engages in the top four services, and today we're going to focus specifically
on disaster services. I'd like to share with you our disaster service responses here in Hawaii. When we
talk about disaster response, we have a pretty specific definition of what it is that we respond to. As
you've seen, the majority of what we respond to are natural disasters, but increasingly we are responding
to more manmade disasters, whether that be hazmat occurrences or building collapses, transportation,
aviation accidents. So, we are having response capacity not only to natural disasters but also to some
manmade disasters as well.
We have this definition because a lot of times people are calling our office asking for help about
personal situations that are not part of what we consider to be our disaster definition.
course at
it
to

preparedness
or
throughout the State and County, as
volunteers during simulations, et cetera. You can see that we taught over 26,000 people throughout the
State, CPR and first aid courses, and also nearly 9,500 in terms of water safety instruction.
To bring that to our level here on Maui, last year, we had two multiple-family fires, five single-family
fires. Something that many people don't know the Red Cross does is part of its disaster services is in
support of first responders. So, you see there that we canteened nine brush fires and provided nearly
500 meals for our first responders.
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And last year, we trained 17 new disaster service volunteers, as well as I had mentioned
before, participating in various Statewide and County-wide exercises.
When you look at last year's response in comparison to this year, which is the fiscal year starting July
through October, it's interesting to note -- oh, excuse me, I need to go back one here -- it's interesting to
note that we've already responded to the same number of multiple-family fires. We've canteened more
brush fires for firefighters and first responders in the first quarter of this fiscal year than we did all of last
year. So, that's important to note.
And you look at that number there, we had 17 -- all of last year -- trained disaster volunteers. That
number, as you can see, is much larger. We're talking over 80 new volunteers and that has happened
literally within the last month. That is a direct response to the community's desire for emergency
preparedness.
We had an inundation of volunteers calling who wanted to help at Katrina, and I think that's fantastic.
My goal now obviously is to get them to stay on as active volunteers here in our own community so that
they will be prepared to help here in Hawaii. Hopefully, some of these folks will get some experience
on the national level. The more people that we train and send out to respond on a national level the
more prepared we will be here in Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Excuse me.
MS. FOUST: And again we've already-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Excuse me.
MS. FOUST: Oh, yes, ma'am?
"canteened" means?

MS.

any

res[Ionses I

SIr.

CHAIR MOLINA: Oh. I'm sorry, Ms. Foust. You can go ahead and continue. What I'd like to do after the
presentation, we'll have you come up to the front, and then you can respond to questions from the
Committee Members.
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MS. FOUST: Certainly. Thank you. And as I say here to the last bullet, we've participated in various
County-wide exercises, tabletop exercises. Our volunteers are planning to do a disaster assessment
exercise in November to drill that particular function.
The Hawaii State Chapter has conducted a hazard risk assessment, and Statewide, these are the four
hazards that are going to have the most, highest risk and highest impact if they were to occur. And those
four, as you can see, are flooding, hurricane, tsunami, and volcanic eruption.
Obviously, volcanic eruption is primarily limited to the Big Island; however, the response is going to be
a Statewide response should that happen. And again, this is at the Statewide level. Many people are
surprised that flooding is one of the top hazards, but that is the number one hazard. As we know, last
year, on Oahu, just around this time, they had the -- what did they call it? -- the Halloween Eve flood in
Manoa Valley.
We also have flash flooding here that we've had actually fatalities here on the island because of flash
flooding and high-rising streams and creeks.
Although hurricanes have been far and few between, I think it's quite important for us not to
underestimate the probability of that happening or the impact that that would have if it were to occur.
The other thing that we need to remember regarding hurricanes is that we don't necessarily have to have
a direct hit to sustain damages and to have a disaster. When you look at the rainfall, the wind, and also
storm-surge effect, that is our big concern especially as we continue development and people are moving
and living along the coastline areas.
Tsunamis, we talk about two different types of tsunamis whether it be a locally generated one perhaps
from some volcanic or seismic activity on the Big Island and also something that would be generated
further away, perhaps in Chile or in the Aleutians or even Japan. The ones that are generated further
away, obviously, have a little bit more time to react to versus the ones that would be generated here
locally. But these are
ones, according to our risk assessment, that are going to pose the most
and
.......~"M'.. to our
'A

h>U,",UY.",.

Bearing that in mind, let's talk more about what the Red Cross response is during disaster. There are
two phases of response for the Red Cross, and I think it's quite important that we have the differentiation
here. When we talk first about the pre-impact response, first thing that Red Cross is going to be doing,
as it shows here on Bullet 1, is the coordination of opening and staffing evacuation shelters. I have
evacuation shelters highlighted because there is a difference between shelters that are evacuation
shelters, which is where people would go to seek safety from the storm or from whatever impending
disaster is coming, and then we also, as we'll see in the next slide, have what we call, excuse me,
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congregate care shelters where after a storm has passed through, people will be actually living or staying
until they can return to their homes.
Evacuation shelters are identified by the State Civil Defense in coordination with our County Civil
Defense. Primarily in Hawaii, those are the schools. At these evacuation shelters, Red Cross will be
providing limited health services, basic first aid, and helping people who have perhaps medical needs
that can be addressed at a shelter, again, very minimal types of health services; disaster mental health
services, which is also sometimes referred to as crisis counseling. At this point in time, we would also
have a representative, our liaison in the Emergency Operating Center downstairs.
And we also are working with VOAD, which is the Voluntary Organizations Active in Disaster. And
those are other non-profits and organizations who network together and pull resources, talking about
who can provide what during a disaster. So, those are the things that we would be doing pre-impact.
Another point that I need to make, and I cannot stress this enough regarding the evacuation shelters,
many people are unaware, despite many efforts on behalf of Red Cross and Civil Defense and other
agencies, when someone is going to an evacuation shelter they are supposed to bring with them their
shelter or disaster kit. Each person that goes into the shelter is supposed to bring with them food, water,
bedding, clothing, medications, enough to sustain them for a minimum of three days. That three-day
minimum is the national standard. Here in Hawaii, I think that, that's not enough. We need to be talking
about five to seven days minimum of your own supplies that you would be bringing with you, again, to
the shelter.
There's, that's probably the misconception number one that I have to work with and hard to dispel
because people see things on the television showing a Red Cross shelter and showing cots for everyone
and showing food being handed out and all kinds of other services. What they're not realizing is what
they're seeing in those news clips are the post-impact response.
So again, we need to differentiate between the evacuation shelter and
me out

storm -storm
come
we
be converting over to congregate care shelters. Once
wanting to get back to their own homes and properties.
homes depending on the damage that is sustained.
The difference again between a congregate care shelter and an evacuation shelter, the congregate care
shelter now does not have to be able to withstand the same types of winds and in terms of location as an
evacuation shelter. So, we have more facilities that are useable as congregate care shelters. Those
include the Parks and Recreation centers, community centers, and churches throughout the islands.
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In addition to coordinating the shelter opening here, we would also begin our mass feeding at the
shelters and also mobile feeding. That's more difficult for us to do here on Maui. We have one what we
call emergency response vehicle, which is familiar to us, it's kind of like a lunch wagon, right? It would
take the meals out to the remote areas. So, we only have one of those feeding vehicles here on Maui.
We would be relying on working with National Guard and other restaurants and caterers that have those
types of trucks to help disperse the food. We would initiate the disaster assessment. This is the key to
determining how much assistance is going to be needed and whether we would be able to stand this
operation up by ourselves or how much assistance we would need either from the State level or from the
national leveL
And the final response point here talks about integrated client services. We would be initiating our
welfare information, that's if people outside of Hawaii have family or friends that are here in Hawaii we
would help them to know that their loved ones are safe, or we would help people get the message
outside of the area.. , .(CHANGE TAPE) . .. Bulk distribution in Hawaii, we have what is the disaster
field service center, or excuse me, supply center. On Oahu, we do have bulk distribution items such as
food, water, blankets, cots, and your emergency items. As I mentioned and I'm sure you all heard, that
is on Oahu, so that would take several days to be mobilized and deployed here. And depending on the
severity of what happens that may be even longer especially if Oahu is hit directly, because they would
be using the supplies themselves before they would start to get out to the neighbor islands.
At this time too, we would continue our coordination with the local government via the EOC and also
there's other voluntary agencies.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Pull it away.
MS. FOUST: Oh. Pull it away? Thank you. No problem. Is that alright there?
KANE:

Right now, in order to staff those shelters we
been also working
working with their staff and their PCNCs, their Parent Community -- what is that? -- Network
Coordinator in terms of identifYing people at each of those schools to staff that shelter.
Right now, we do not have teams at Baldwin High School, Maui High School, Maui Waena, or Wailuku
Elementary. That is a big concern to me personally, especially when you look at Baldwin and Maui
High School, because those are large facilities and those would be where many people would be going
to seek shelter. So, I continue to work with Department of Education and their Safety Coordinator for
the Baldwin Complex to identifY those volunteers that would be staffing those shelters.
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And also, the final bullet here I say that there is an inadequate number of shelter spaces for the residents
here on Maui. When you look at the Civil Defense's shelter and evacuation data, the shelters that are
rated, what we call, "one", which is currently useable, or "two", which is useable with some risk.
We have about 32,000 shelter spaces, our resident population is over 135,000. Red Cross anticipates
approximately 35 percent of the population would actually seek shelter. That puts us at about 47,500.
So, you're looking at 47,500 and that's 35 percent of the population seeking shelter versus 32,000 shelter
spaces that are considered useable or useable with some risk.
I know that the State Civil Defense has been sending out some engineers to the schools. They are
prioritizing which schools will be receiving monies to retrofit and what are the upgrades that need to be
done to those schools in order to make them Level 1 in terms of ready for use. Before I left in
September, they had come over here to Maui, and they had also visited Lanai and Molokai to do that
shelter prioritization. I have not heard yet how they've decided to spend those monies or which schools
will be first, but that is currently in process.
When you look at sheltering also, some other concerns. Red Cross shelters do not allow animals, pets to
come into shelters. Service animals would be allowed in; however, many, many people on Maui and in
Hawaii in general are pet owners, and we've seen from Katrina and also last year during the four
hurricanes that hit Florida and the Gulf Coast, there were many residents who did not evacuate because
they wanted to stay with their pets. I am currently working with Jocelyn Bouchard of the Maui Humane
Society to identify ways that we can work together.
I do know that at the national level the American Red Cross is also recognizing this as a big problem,
and they have done some experimental things in terms of designating certain shelters as animal-friendly
or pet-friendly. And that's something that we'd want to look at here in Maui. The concern though is that
if we don't have enough shelter spots for residents, then the shelter spots for pets is obviously going to
be secondary. But it is a big concern because
are going to
own personal safety to stay

Fortunately in July of this year, I was able to travel to Molokai to do some training for some volunteers
there, and we now have 26 trained volunteers on Molokai. So, that is a step in the right direction. We
have plenty of volunteers Upcountry and plenty of volunteers Central. Surprisingly, South is also a
weak point in terms of the numbers of volunteers that we have. But again with the awareness that has
been raised because of Katrina and these other disasters, we have been able to fill in some of those gaps.
So now, it's, it's a priority in terms of training.
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A Level 2 disaster would initiate opening of a shelter, one or more shelters. And here on Maui, we
would be able to initiate an effective response, because we would be able to draw on volunteers from
other age ... , or excuse me, not other agencies, volunteers from other areas. Depending on the length of
the disaster whatever it would be and the scope, we might require some assistance from other
neighboring counties. We provided assistance, for example, to Hilo when they had flooding back in
2000 so that would be an example of a Level 2 response.
When you look at a Level 3 response, that's going to be multiple counties in Hawaii. Here on Maui, we
would be able to initiate a response; however, we would need assistance from the Chapter level that
would be sending in supplies and volunteers. And if it continues beyond 10 to 15 days we might
actually need to have assistance from our service area, which is the Pacific Region located in
Sacramento or potentially nationally.
Something more catastrophic, a Level 4 or 5 that would hit all of the islands and particularly hit Oahu
hard, we would definitely need to transition more quickly to a national response. We would ask for
assistance through our service area, which again is Sacramento and they would send the leadership
people with the experience on a nationally-administered response. And that would be what we saw
during a Katrina-type disaster. The last one that had that level in Hawaii was Hurricane Iniki.
So, we look at what are our vulnerabilities here in Hawaii? This is not a surprise to anyone, I think that
we're all aware that our isolated geography puts us at a higher risk at all levels. Our State is very, very,
very, very, very far away from the rest of the mainland separated by miles and miles of ocean. Beyond
that, our counties are separated by water. Here on Maui within our own County, our people are
separated on different islands.
And then icing on the cake, it only takes a storm surge, some water runoff of the stream to, to isolate
even the different communities within our own County. Hana, easily cut off; Lahaina, easily cut off;
Kihei, the road floods there very quickly, although we do have the upper highway now. But many of
our own
on
are
to
to
to

point is
I
to
I
when they come to the shelter aU of these things win be provided for them, when in reality again it goes
back to the second point, they should be bringing these things for themselves. And then finally, I also
mentioned, as we talked about earlier, that we have too few shelter spaces that would be used as
evacuation shelters.
I'm going to move into more of a preparedness mode now in terms of these are the things that we expect.
This is the reality of our situation living here in, in a island geography. So what is it that we can do as
individuals to prepare? Nationwide, the Red Cross has a five-step plan that we go out and we talk to
- 13-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Couucil ofthe County of Maui

November 1, 2005

people at schools, at community centers, and really try to drill home the things that we need to do to get
prepared. And those are five steps that are relatively easy to do. First one, make a plan; build a kit; get
trained; volunteer; and then give blood. We'll just look at those a little bit more closely.
When we talk about making a plan, you want to make a evacuation plan; you want to make a family
communication plan; you want to have off-island contacts, who would you call that is off-island that
everybody if you're separated, that could be your local point or your central point of contact. It's
important to talk about it with your family, and beyond that not even just at a family level, at your
businesses, within your community. Figure out what it is that you need to do, learn what the hazards
are, what are the most common things that might happen to me in my neighborhood. Check on your
supplies, tell other people about your plan. If you've named somebody on the mainland as your
off-island contact you might want to let them know, by the way, that that's something that they've been
included in with your plan, and then to practice the plan. So, Step 1, make a plan.
Beyond that, you want to build a kit. These are some of the essential items that you would need,
obviously, water and food; first aid and medical supplies; your clothing and bedding; tools and other
supplies; and your important family documents. This, the important family documents, it's very crucial
for people to have identification if you're going to receive aid either from Red Cross or other agencies
they're going to need to be able to verify who you are and that you lived at the address or in an affected
area.
Then we talk about getting trained, getting trained in first aid; CPR; water safety; using the
defibrillator -- we have those in all of our County buildings now, it's important that we aU know how to
use them -- and swimming instruction. It's always amazing to us how many people don't know how to
swim when we're all surrounded by water. So we talk about getting trained.
Additionally, we ask people to volunteer. In disaster services these are the main areas that we would be
using volunteers, mass care and shelter operations, that's the primary function of the Red Cross during a
extent
damage;

At this time, I will go ahead and come up front, I suppose, to answer questions. But I want to rpl·tpr'~tp
again, the role of the Red Cross in a response capacity is as a support function. Our primary role is in
feeding and sheltering and again primarily after the storm hits. They're not going to be moving supplies
here to put them in the direct path of a hurricane, it would be after that already comes through that the
relief supplies would be coming. And again, due to our isolated geography where in the other parts of
the world, not necessarily the world, in other parts of the country they can expect to see help within
three days, it's going to be longer than that for us here, and we need to be prepared to stand alone.
- 14-
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Ms. Foust. Members, we're going to take a break and reconvene at
10 o'clock. .... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

9:50 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:00 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: .. ' (gavel). .. Committee of the Whole meeting for November 1S\ is now back in session.
Thank you very much for that break, Members, and Ms. Foust from the Red Cross, thank you very much
for that presentation. To say that it was an eye-opener is definitely an understatement.
At this time, I'm going to ask the Committee Members if they have any questions which relate to
disasters here, Committee of the Whole Item 36 is the item we are talking about. And Members, prior to
your asking Ms. Foust questions, I would like you to confine your questions as much as possible to
natural disasters. Because the term disaster preparedness, we could go off in a lot of different directions,
terrorist attacks, airplane crashes, and so forth, so for today's discussion I would like to ask that your
questions be confined to natural disasters. So with that being said, Members, questions for Ms. Foust,
from the Red Cross? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One thing that I would be interested in since it is our understanding that
Mr. Iinuma currently as our Maui County Civil Defense coordinator is so-called the person in charge,
can you tell us your, the role your agency and Maui Civil Defense plays in ... do you await notification
from Mr. Iinuma and his, his office before you start doing certain types of pre-disaster preparation,
implementation?
MS. FOUST: In terms of natural disaster, right?

MS. FOUST: Okay.

that better?

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes.
MS. FOUST: Okay. Fortunately, hurricanes give us plenty of time to watch and to prepare. The Red Cross
policy is 72 hours out as, as it is with all ofthe State of Hawaii. Once something crosses the 140 degree
latitude, excuse me, yeah, latitude, not longitude?
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Longitude.
MS. FOUST: Longitude. Thank you. Once we cross the 140 degree longitude, then it becomes of concern for
us and we do what we call our watch. We, we stand up volunteers on a watch team immediately, and
we're not waiting for any notification from any particular agency for us to activate.
We would call out to our shelter teams, the ones that I had identified. We would call out to them just to
talk about their availability, you see this is coming, if we were to call you, are you on island? That kind
of thing so we could assess where we are in terms of response leveL
And then as the storm continues to approach, we have a protocol in terms of when we would start to
open shelters. We ask our volunteers 36 hours out, you start to do things to your own home preparing
yourself, your family, your home, freezing water, you know, making ice, putting the water, all of the
things that you see in your emergency preparedness things. And we stress to our volunteers, you know,
you need to take care of yourself and your family and property first, so that you can come and then be of
service in terms of as a volunteer.
We would open shelters approximately between 24 to 12 hours prior to impact. At that point in time, we
would be with our EOC liaison consulting with both Department of Education, since it is their facilities
that we will be using as well as the Civil Defense to determine, okay, we have enough staff to shelter or
to open these particular ones; these ones have been designated as Level 1 or 2, in terms of able to
withstand hurricane force winds; and we would make that determination together.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: With Civil Defense?
MS. FOUST: With Civil Defense and Department of Education, yes.
sure

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Are you, is your agency a part of, I understand that DMAT group?
MS. FOUST: DMAT, Disaster Medical Action Team-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
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MS. FOUST: --is a Federal program. I believe that they fall under Homeland Security. We work with them,
we are aware of their capacities, et cetera, we're not affiliated.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, you're not part of the regular meetings of review and assessment?
MS. FOUST: ForDMAT?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. FOUST: No, sir. We are not part ofDMAT's regular meetings or anything.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Should you be? Should you be?
MS. FOUST: Should we be? I, I don't know, they're housed on Oahu now, Disaster Medical Action Team, and
as I mentioned, they are part of a Federally-funded program. So again, we work with them but we're
not-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. FOUST: --part ofthem.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Oh. I only ask you that question because Maui had a DMAT team-MS. FOUST: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and for reasons that has not been made clear to myself and possibly the
other Members, that team longer exists in Maui County,-correct.

to
MS. FOUST: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, thank you for your responses.
MS. FOUST: You're welcome-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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MS. FOUST: --certainly.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Member Hokama. Prior to entertaining additional questions, the
Chair has received, for the Members' information, comments on disaster preparedness from Pat Reilly
of Lanai and Tom Cannon ofMaui. Questions? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much for your presentation.
MS. FOUST: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I do have a couple of questions related to your presentation.
MS. FOUST: Yes, Ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Your figures on the number of evacuation shelters needed was based on
our resident population,-MS. FOUST: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --which you stated somewhere in the neighborhood of a hundred and
thirty,-MS. FOUST: One thirty-five approximately.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --thirty-five.
MS. FOUST: We're using 2003 Census data.

and
I
I cannot
as to
my understanding, they have their own emergency preparedness plans. They have a lot of their own,
they might actually have more than, than the residents have in terms of water, blankets, food. They're,
-- the
they're prepared for that. And that is a big part of what the -- oh, I can't even think of Matt's
security, Hotel and Security Association-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, essentially Red Cross and the County of Maui is leaving the visitor
industry on their own. In other words, you're responsible for the visitors-- 18-
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MS. FOUST: We are not responsible for-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --in any disaster?
MS. FOUST: --the visitors. We are responsible for the residents ofMaui County. The Red Cross, right? The
Red Cross shelters are designed-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. I'm, I'm saying Red Cross and the County of Maui is not responsible
for the visitors. Based on what you're saying, the visitor industry, the hotels at which they're staying are
responsible for them. Is that what you're saying?
MS. FOUST: I cannot speak as to Maui County, but yes, as far as Red Cross response it would not be inclusive
of the visitors in a hurricane-type situation, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, this poses a problem because the hotels are all along the
coastline, and that's going to be the heaviest impact area. Just, you know, look at Katrina. So we have
to be prepared for another location for these people to go to. It's not enough to say that the hotels have
food and bedding. I mean we already know that. We need to have an alternative location for these
people.
MS. FOUST: We need to have an alternative location for our popUlation as well. As I mentioned, we don't
even have enough shelter spaces for the people who are residents ofMaui County, and that's our primary
responsibility and to-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I understand that, but what I'm trying to say is, is, we are short more than
what you're saying as far as evacuation shelters-MS. FOUST: Yes, very much.

IS a very
And I
Visitors Bureau and also the Hotel and Security Association -- I'm sorry I keep, I keep getting
wrong -- in terms of what their plans are and what we can do to work together. Our, our main concern
would be to get them off the island if at all possible or, or have them vacate the islands.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would you be able to give me an idea if we used a de facto number of
183,000 people how many shelters, evacuation shelters we would actually need?
MS. FOUST: Urn. Let's say--19-
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Out of the 25 or 23 that you identified how many, how many would be
needed for that number of population?
MS. FOUST: I couldn't ten you that off the top of my head. We're talking, we have 23 schools that are
identified as evacuation shelters. Within those schools, there are approximately 32,000, room for
32,000 persons. So, if it!s a very large facility versus a lot of smaller facilities, I, it's not, it's not
necessarily a number of shelters that would be, it would be the spaces within a shelter. So, you're-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I think that we need to figure out what that is because-MS. FOUST: --okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --if, God forbid, the situation should occur, I don't think someone's going
to be standing at the door and asking for someone's proof of residency before letting them in. People
who show up are going to be allowed in or-MS. FOUST: Until we reach capacity. That's a major concern for us, too. I mean we are-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's why I'm saying, we need to know the actual number for the
total number of people on the island in any given time. The other thing that I'm concerned about,
Mr. Chair, and I don't know if, if your agency is responsible for this, but I didn't hear any mention of an
evacuation plan.
MS. FOUST: The Red Cross-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How people are going to be evacuated and in specifically for, for certain
regions?

Ms. Foust.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Civil Defense is not here?
CHAIR MOLINA: No. And we did, the Committee did make a good faith effort to invite Mr. Iinuma. He did
commit earlier last week and then for whatever reasons canceled out this past Friday. So, I just thought
I'd share that with you all. Ms. Foust, if you could respond to Member Anderson's questions.
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MS. FOUST: That is a major concern, I know, as a citizen of Maui County and as a resident of Maui County.
The Red Cross opens shelters. We are not in charge or responsible for getting people to the shelters. So
the evacuation of residents is not within the realm of what the Red Cross would do. We are staffing and
opening the shelters and caring for people when they come into the shelters, but we don't get them to the
shelters.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Well, hopefully, we'll be able to address that. I don't understand
why Civil Defense isn't here. I mean this is a big issue for everyone, and if the Director can't come what
about Allan?
CHAIR MOLINA: My understanding is there was a siren test this morning, but again, he indicated to me
earlier this morning that he was not asked to be here. So, your guess is as good as mme,
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: This does not bode well for disaster preparedness. Does the Red Cross
have a communication system should all of our telephone communications go down? Is there an
alternative communication system?
MS. FOUST: The Red Cross has a statement of understanding with the Amateur Radio Relay League, and on
Oahu, they are, they have repeaters and they have the equipment.
That's something that we're working on here on Maui. I have been working through VOAD, the
Voluntary Organizations Active in Disaster to identify persons who are interested in receiving their
HAM radio licenses, and also one of the VOAD members is willing to do an instruction class for people
who are interested in getting their HAM radio licenses. And we also have someone who has volunteered
to donate to the Red Cross the equipment that we will need.
So, at this point in time, I do not have that in my personal, not my personal, excuse me,
am I
we
we

--are
MS. FOUST: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

-~and

provide the communications that you need?

MS. FOUST: Yes. And they were the first ones to establish communication links after Iniki on Kauai.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I recall that. And we do have some very good HAM operators
here on Maui that I think are at the forefront of that kind of communication, so-- 21 -
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MS. FOUST: Yes, and we have-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --I'm glad you-MS. FOUST: --that on Molokai and Lanai as well, so that's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Good,
MS. FOUST: --somewhat. .. {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --I'm glad you're plugged into that. And then is there any kind of program
in place that would be able to help, specifically help those people who are evacuated to your shelters
during an emergency to take care of the handicapped, the infirmed and people such as that?
MS. FOUST: There are not any shelters in Maui that are identified specifically as sheltering or, excuse me,
special-needs populations. We are working with Department of Health to determine how best to handle
that. If people were coming to the shelter that had severe or extreme medical needs they would more
likely, most likely be sent to the hospital. We don't have the capacity, as I said, as far as special-needs
shelters at this point in time. So, that's another vulnerability that could have been included in this
presentation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you very much.
MS. FOUST: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.

I
to
out some
researched and I, I, you know, some of the goals and objectives of Project Impact, I, have they been
implemented? I know for a fact that in West Maui, the trailer that we had sought, which is right next to
the fire station, that had been put in with emergency supplies. But I'm not sure of the other areas and
how far along are we, and are you working with anyone towards the implementation of those goals and
objectives?
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MS. FOUST: Project Impact was about -- what was that? -- like three or four years ago, I believe. East Hawaii
has also a container with supplies, cots, blankets, et cetera. The Red Cross is, was consulted during that
project. We were not overseeing that project.
I don't know who has the responsibility of continuing that project. As I mentioned, we have and we
utilize a lot of their brochures and the information that they had collected and gathered. But I do not
know who is responsible for the upkeep and the maintenance of that program, or if that was a one-time,
one-time deal or, or again the ongoing maintenance of that, I don't know whose,-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 1-MS. FOUST: --who that falls under.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --I do believe it was done with a grant from the Federal Government, and it
was done, I believe the central coordination was done through our Civil Defense office. So they do have
some of the materials and they're familiar with the outcomes. But I just wondered if there was any
ongoing discussion, because there were specific roles for different agencies because this was a
collaboration of many agencies.
MS. FOUST: Right. And I think through VOAD, the Volunteer Organizations Active in Disaster, those
agencies continue to work very closely together in terms of identifying resources, which I believe is one
of the major outcomes of Project Impact, just identification of resources, what's available during a time
of disaster. But again I, I'm not aware of who is responsible for the ongoing maintenance of that
program.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I really appreciate that, and Mr. Chair, if we might send a letter to
our Civil Defense organization to ask them what the current status is of that program or if we are any
closer to implementing any of those items.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wonder how that,
light of the presentation you were
today, is this creating an additional vulnerability at our local level as far as resources go?

us

MS. FOUST: That's an excellent point. Yes, it is. When you talk about the unbelievable amount of natural
disasters that have happened, starting with last year, the four hurricanes that happened and then the
tsunami on the, on the global level. And then, what I think a lot of people didn't realize about these
hurricanes recently, with Katrina obviously that was an over the news, that received a lot of attention in
terms of the suffering and the lack of preparation and response or very slow response. What some
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people haven't realized is that Rita, which followed very shortly thereafter, in comparison to some of the
hurricanes of last year, it was bigger than any of those four hurricanes that came through and hit Florida
last year. But since it followed so closely after Katrina, it sort of got swallowed up in that.
So, what we haven't necessarily realized, and then I was amazed to see the people after Wilma, I didn't
think it was going to be that bad, and well, they told us to be able to have our things for three days, wen,
where are they? Resources throughout the country are stretched very thinly in terms of physical
resources, material resources and also volunteer resources in terms of personnel ability to respond.
Here in Hawaii, we, with the Red Cross you always start at the, at the local level, so we would try to do
what we could on our own, and as you saw from the presentation, that's talking about a Level 1 or a
Level 2. We could open one or two shelters if, if there were something happening more localized. We
could do that here on our own.
Beyond that, we would look to the State, the Chapter and then to the National level. I think that the Red
Cross is going to do everything in its powers to reverse that trend, but I do worry about the pinch to
people's wallets, and we've been hearing it called, you know, donor fatigue. How many times, you
know, can someone give to other agencies and organizations?
So it is a crucial time right now for the American Red Cross, particularly, the International Red Cross as
wen, but speaking to what we were talking about today, it is a major concern. People dug very deeply
into their pockets last year and again this year.
Tsunami relief, you know, aid poured out and then immediately after Katrina, we saw people very, very
generously giving of time and, and money. And now, when you look at the, just the sheer enormity of
what Red Cross is trying to accomplish, it is a very big concern.
Last year, there were Congressional appropriations to refund some of the shelter operations, but there
not
as
as
aware
now,
to
any

storm
was really frightening to go through
not have
over a
to not
have any, you know, hot and cold running water, to have things not the way you expect them to be. So,
I urge people to also do their disaster kits.
MS. FOUST: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I think that, Mr. Chair, one of the purposes, I, I believe, in, you know,
a meeting like this is to also educate the public about what we can as government, what we're capable of
doing, and what we're not capable of doing. And so, I would urge people to volunteer.
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One other question I had and because you stressed about the animals not being permitted at the shelters.
About three or four years ago, I went through a training under the EARS program, which was, I think it's
Emergency Animal Rescue Society. And what was really important, I think, was having a plan for your
pets as well. Have you ever worked with the EARS organization, or do you work only with just, you
know, the human component?
MS. FOUST: We are recognizing, and more and more so, the need to integrate the animal component with the
human component, especially when you look at the bond that people have with their pets. And 1 do
work very closely with Jocelyn Bouchard at the Maui Humane Society, and that is one of our priorities
is to identifY a plan. If it's not the same shelter that we would be taking the residents to, is there
someplace nearby that we could use as an evacuation shelter for animals?
It is a big concern, because many people will continue to put themselves at risk versus leaving their
animals. So it is something that we're working on. 1 have mentioned that there is, 1 did see on the

National Red Cross website that after Katrina, when they were evacuating for Rita, they did open
shelters that were pet-friendly. And they had rules and things like that where you had to have your
animal confined in some kind of carrying cage, et cetera. So we want to try to look at alternatives to that
as well.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. FOUST: You're welcome.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Prior to entertaining more questions, the Chair would just
like to share with the Committee, if you do have questions with regards to the role of our hotels, we do
have Ms. Correa, Lani Correa of the Maui Hotel Association in the gallery. And if, if there is a need to
ask any questions as it relates to the evacuation of our visitors or any plans the hotels have, they are, I
assume
to come

MOLINA: --very effective. Oh, you brought that.
sorry. It just said, County of MaUl. I
presumed it was from the County ofMaui. So, this is provided by the Red Cross.
So in essence, Members, we have received nothing. But I do see Mr. DeLeon in the gallery and I'm
presuming he will be here to speak on behalf of the Administration possibly with regards to Civil
Defense ifhe chooses. That will be on another item, Mr. DeLeon? Okay. Thank you.
Members, let us continue our line of questioning. Member Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Chair. Yeah. I was just going to say about this
disaster preparedness that was formulated by the County, this is a very good evacuation plan. And I, I
think that if we can provide this information to the people of Maui County that would be good.
Question that I have for the Red Cross, I know from summer to November is the hurricane season.
MS. FOUST: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: As far as the EOC, you know, it's too bad that the Director is not here.
How often do you folks meet in regards to mock disasters or mock hurricanes that, you know, heading
towards Hawaii-MS. FOUST: Okay. The question-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --and who is involved?
MS. FOUST: Okay. Statewide we do every year, we call, it's called Makani Pahili. It's a Statewide exercise
involving all the State Civil Defense, the County Civil Defenses and all of the agencies that would be
activated during a hurricane. That is the primary time during the year when Red Cross, for example,
would activate its call-down list.
That's when we update and make sure, excuse me, that we have the correct contact information, that the
volunteers still live here on Maui, they haven't moved away. So, that would involve everyone from
Civil Defense to Fire, Police, Ocean Safe, excuse me, Ocean Safety, the Visitors Bureau, the Hotel
Association and all agencies that would be activated during that time.
So, that is an annual exercise and that's done usually in March or April, so in preparation for the
upcoming hurricane season.
Other than that, there are probably -- and it depends

MS.

--with an

counties participating.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --just about every government agency is represented?
MS. FOUST: Yes. Very much so. And then even when Jova was threatening Hawaii, I wasn't here, I was very
nervous, I was very nervous I was going to get stuck on the mainland and then have to try to stand up a
response here in Hawaii. But when that happens, the EOC is activated at that point in time, and
although I wasn't here, there were volunteer liaisons that were represented there.
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They also have meetings with the National Weather Service, where they give us an update or a briefing
about what the upcoming hurricane season is forecasted to look like. That's always well-attended at the
EOC with all the agencies. Also recently in the last, probably two weeks, there was another one with the
weather service hydrologist talking about the upcoming wet season or rainy season and in anticipation of
flooding or heavy rains that might come this winter. So, that one was also very well-attended by many
agencies at the EOC.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, in regards to the EOC and I used to work for the phone company
and I used to attend these meetings, and at the meetings we'd set up priorities, and I guess they still do
that in regards to, how, how do we handle the public. Is that still being done?
MS. FOUST: In regards to the public, Ellen Pelissero is often in attendance at these EOC meetings, and we do
coordinate all the agencies. We kind of talk about the need to have a quick communication to the
public, accurate communication to the public, and so that is something that is discussed at the EOC
meetings, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member Mateo, followed by Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. When you go through all your trammg and
opportunities that you do attend, how do you transmit what you have learned, what you have gained,
what you've experienced to say like Molokai? Because your, I mean, I'm, we have a volunteer.
MS. FOUST: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So how are they helped in preparedness when they don't participate in this

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
you had the opportunity to do an assessment of,
Red
for Molokai based on, on needs and not only the training need but, but equipment and, and supplies and
things of that nature?
MS. FOUST: I have not done a formal ... what did you call them? I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Assessment.
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MS. FOUST: Assessment, thank you. Have not done a formal assessment of that. I do talk to the volunteer
over there. They have very minimal response in terms of supplies. They would be relying on the
disaster field-supply center that I mentioned on Oahu to be bringing them things in their time of need.
Becomes much more urgent for the people of Molokai than in terms of the individual preparedness and
that message.
I'm working with one of the Red Cross volunteers to write a grant to get disaster supplies so that
individuals could come and make their kits. Because that is the biggest problem that I've seen is that
people will give, give me their attention and pay attention to the need and what they should be doing,
but then to translate that into action has been, that's been where there's the disconnect.
So we are working with one of the volunteers to try to get grants to at least get them basic stuff for, for
the residents to start putting their things together. I hope that, that will come together soon and-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And on, on-MS. FOUST: --again education.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --in one of the shelters on the island, these, the shelters aU go through a
certification process?
MS. FOUST: Again, we're talking about evacuation shelter versus a congregate care shelter, so we obviously
don't want to evacuate people to some location where they're still going to be in harm's way. When
people are evacuating to a shelter during hurricane preparedness, they have the assumption that they're
going to be safe. And Red Cross, we're not engineers, so we do work closely with the State Civil
Defense, and they're the ones who are providing the engineers and the architects to go out and examine
the schools to determine which ones could be used during a hurricane as an evacuation shelter.

MS. FOUST: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: We really appreciate your presentation this morning in the absence of our Civil Defense
Department's choice not to be here. The phone number that you listed on the second to last slide, the
244-0051, is that a hot pager number?
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MS. FOUST: That is not the hot pager number, I had that on the volunteer page. That's what I would like
people to call if they are interested in becoming a volunteer through the Red Cross. The hot pager
number and this is the 24-hour emergency number is 357-1615. That's used mostly by the dispatch,
police dispatch. They're the ones who normally will call us to notify us. As you saw during the
presentation, the majority of what we respond to are single-family fires and flooding situations.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Once we have an emergency situation and using the hurricane as an
example and we get knocked out as far as electricity, how useful is that hot pager number regarding
having no electricity?
MS. FOUST: It's probably not that useful. It's a cell phone number, so it would be reliant upon cell, cell towers
and then obviously the battery life of the, of the phone. We do have a generator at the Red Cross office
that we could use to power batteries.
However, when I was in Louisiana, cell service is pretty much non-existent and very, very spotty and
unreliable. We do talk to our volunteers. If there is an inability for them to use the telephones they're to
go and report to the shelter to which they're assigned and to bring their shelter, obviously, bring their
shelter kits with them as well as the shelter manager's kit, which would be the minimal paperwork and
signage, et cetera, needed to open a shelter.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Now focusing in on pre-, pre-contact-MS. FOUST: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --and so it seems that's where the phone numbers would be very useful in helping
people if they don't have written information or don't have access to a radio or a-MS. FOUST: Right.
screen.

MS. FOUST: There are, there are and I apologize, I don't have those with me. They might be
my,
my
phone, preprogrammed in my phone. There is, the volunteer coordinator on Molokai and also on Lanai
each have a Red Cross cell phone that they've been issued, and those numbers have been given to their
emergency response personnel on their respective islands. I apologize I don't know those off the top of
my head.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Would you be able to provide the Committee with that,-- 29-
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MS. FOUST: I would.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --both those phone numbers?
MS. FOUST: That would be fine.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So that we can have it on record and somehow we can get that information out as well.
MS. FOUST: Certainly.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: The other question I have, Mr. Chair, ifI may?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Is first, I understand that you can only really answer the questions pertaining to the
American Red Cross, so forgive us if we-MS. FOUST: That's okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --stray over bounds-MS. FOUST: That's fine.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --and think that you're our Civil Defense person, as an example.
MS. FOUST: That's fine. That's, it's also important for people to understand what, what the lines of
responsibility are, so that's not a problem.

lle~1t10n was
see
I
that's kind of a tough question, but I, it's important for us to understand. And if not, are you prepared to
provide some information and it can be writing at some later point that would help us strengthen our
abilities to be responsive to the public in a emergency situation.

MS. FOUST: As far as the Red Cross and the relationship with other agencies, we have a very good working
relationship, and a lot of that is because of continued efforts to visit the EOC, to attend these EOC
meetings, which as I mentioned earlier, also continued efforts.
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An organization here on Maui that's very strong is the Maui Volunteer, Voluntary Organizations Active
in Disaster, and I've referred to that several times. We do meet once a month, and while nationwide the
VOAD groups nationwide are strictly the voluntary agencies, here on Maui, our monthly meetings not
only include voluntary agencies such as the Visitors and Conventions Bureau, the Human Society, the
Maui United Way, the Food Bank, but we also include and represented at the meetings are Fire
Department, Police, Medical Response, the Hospital Association, Civil Defense, Council on Aging.
So we have here in that monthly meeting, we do have a good networking of both the government
agencies and the voluntary agencies in terms of knowing who is who and who brings what to the table.
So I feel confident in that regard as to in terms of working, working with the other agencies and
knowing sort of who would, who would do what.
There are obviously big holes. I think Ms. Anderson brought one up in terms of the evacuation. Who is,
who is going to be responsible for the evacuation? That's a major concern that gets discussed a lot. We
don't have, we don't have an answer for that yet. So, there are, there's a lot of discussion about these
things, but we definitely need to move forward in terms of action on these items beyond just the
discussions.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Finally, do you think it would be a benefit to the public if the public had access to those
monthly meetings via as an example what we have, public television, a camera that's set up in that room
to see what the process is as far as how you folks interact, engage with each other to prepare for
disasters?
MS. FOUST: I am not prepared to say that on behalf of the whole Committee, yes or no.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I'm asking you for your personal opinion as a person-MS. FOUST: Perhaps--

--sure, sure--

But
it
to people to
something is happening, too, or there are continued efforts in this regard.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your responses-MS. FOUST: You're welcome.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: --and thank you for your presence. Chair, thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. Committee Members, any other questions as it relates to
disaster preparedness for today? If you cannot come up with questions at this time, the Chair does
intend to revisit this matter at a future date. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I see we have a member of the police force here and if it's possible, I
don't know if he's here to testify on this particular item.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. During the break, I did consult with Chief Nakashima. He
did indicate to me that at this point he's not ready to respond for the Department. However, Chief, if you
still would like to come up or else we can, at a future date, have you or someone else from the
Department come up and respond with regards to disaster preparedness and natural disasters. Are you
prepared to come up, sir, or?
CHIEF NAKASHIMA: No, not really. Not under my particular section, but-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
CHIEF NAKASHIMA: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Member Johnson, what we'll do if it's ... through the Committee staff
we can also send your concerns to the Police Department as well and at a future meeting, have someone
from the Police Department be here to respond to questions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I really appreciate that, because one of the difficulties and because I've
been participating over a period of time in discussions with regard to more the Office on Aging and how
we deal with our elderly population. But one of the situations that came up was because many of our
first responders have family who may be in, already in harm's way, and because of what we saw on the
mainland where policemen were forced to choose basically between the safety and wen-being of their
to

to give
their
Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I had just make mention of one thing and that is that there was an
additional undertaking caned Community Voices, which was, now it's kind of rolled over into a Maui
long-term care partnership. But originally, Community Voices did come up with one of their core
projects and we're doing it in West Maui.

- 32-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

November 1,2005

It's going to be geared more towards the seniors but actually preparing the kits, you know, for our frail
and elderly population because many times they don't have the ability or the financial wherewithal to do
that. So I would urge people to get involved in those kind of projects, too, that if you know people that
are in need, that they would at least be able to get something, you know, for the kit. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Any other questions? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Since we do have representatives from the Maui Hotel
Association, could they come forward~CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and just give us a very brief outline of what they...
CHAIR MOLINA: You read my mind.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Correa, if you could come up here and have a seat. Ms. Correa represents the Maui
Hotel Association and I take it this is in regards to your concern in regarding how do we address our
visitors in times of disaster. Please have a seat.
Proceed. Ms. Correa, if you could just identify yourself and your organization for the record.
MS. CORREA: Good morning, Chair and Members of the Committee of the Whole.
Executive Director for the Maui Hotel and Lodging Association.

I'm Lani Correa,

May I ask a question?

IS one
our
Okay.
me
Tanaka from the Maui Prince Hotel.
like to do is to ask approval if it's possible to
Craig come in here and also speak to you and ask you, answer some questions that you may have.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any objections to having Mr. Tanaka as a resource for this particular
matter? Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Tanaka, if you could please come up here and I guess grab a seat somewhere.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: He can go to the podium.
CHAIR MOLINA: Or if you'd like to just respond, you can stay at the podium and respond. Fine. Okay,
Member Anderson, you have any question for either Ms. Correa or Mr. Tanaka?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much for being here, Lani and Mr. Tanaka, also, we
appreciate you coming. So, I'm just going to answer the question and whoever is more appropriate to
answer.
MS. CORREA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And it's really just a generalized question. What, you know, what, what
system do you have in place if ... I mean, I, I'm fully secure in knowing that you're going to take care of
the people .... (CHANGE TAPl:.,j. .. You take care of them everyday. Should a disaster hit that doesn't
wipe you out, but my question is what happens if a tsunami or hurricane comes and disables your
operations? What is the alternative plan for the people under your care? And, and I'm assuming now that
you've changed your name that you're including, maybe it's too soon to include all the condominium
units, too. But just what plans do you have that would be helpful?
MS. CORREA: Okay. That's, let me just give you a little history, okay, before I answer or turn that question,
part of the question over to Craig. The Hotel Association has, works very closely with the Maui County
Hotel and Resort Security Association. And this is an association that is made up of various security, the
security directors, and we also work very closely with our entities like the Red Cross, the Civil Defense,
Department of Health. We have monthly meetings and I'll defer that over to Craig later.
And just to take it to a second level, the hotels, each hotel property has for their own property their own
at
turn it over to

Like
said, the Association, which is made
security directors
Maui County, unfortunately not represented by Lanai or Molokai at this time. But we do get together on
a monthly basis to discuss different matters, one of which is a high priority for us in the last, I believe,
eight months now, is disaster preparedness particularly for hurricanes and tsunami situations that we're
vulnerable to.
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Lani is correct in saying that each property has its own responsibility to develop disaster plans to include
hurricanes, tsunamis, fires, bomb threats, and so forth. Anna alluded to the fact that there is vertical
evacuation, which I believe most of the hotels would do especially in the South Maui, West Maui area, in
which all of the occupants would be then evacuated upstairs from the second or third floor and above for
any of those situations.
I do, listening to a lot of the comments today, I must, I must also commend also the Maui Police
Department. In one of our last meetings, Captain Miyahira also said that he was planning, as part of the,
an initiative from the Police Department, to visit the hotels to look over the disaster plans to see how we
could work better together, public and private entities to help our visitors in these situations. Because we
realize that there is no way that evacuation shelters are equipped to take care of our visitors, residents
alone, you know.
So each property does have their responsibility and they do develop on a continual basis this evacuation
plan, which includes disaster supplies such as water, paper goods, food, so forth. And I do agree there
needs to be personal responsibility taken upon not only by the individuals that are residents here but also
by the visitors as well. Yes, we have a responsibility to care for them once they're guests and visitors to
our island and our properties. Yet, each person needs to have personal accountability and responsibility
as they even travel abroad, you knOw.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Tanaka. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You don't mean, what do you mean by personal accountability? I mean
they're away from home. How, do you expect them to carry a kit or what?
MR. TANAKA: Well, I would expect that at least to be prepared for a point of contact, even preparing
themselves ... oftentimes when a disaster or the disasters that I've been a part of here, and I've only been
a part of the hotel for a few years. We have ample time for as far as a warning and a watch, when it's
to
to

Maybe I was wrong in saying preparedness that's in a sense that they should be carrying a kit, not, not
necessarily. It's the hotel's responsibility to do those things. I think I was gearing that more towards the
residents. Yeah. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So if I may just foHow through. So the fact that you have a plan to
vertically evacuate, I mean, actually your guests are probably going to be in a better situation than the
residents, because you do have tall buildings that will raise them above the flood level. And I'm
assuming, of course, that all the buildings are going to withstand hurricane-force winds.
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MR. TANAKA: Again, I'm going to allude to what Anna had pointed out to. Many of the properties have not
been certified by the Civil Defense as a hurricane evacuation site. They are made of concrete, they're
steel-reinforced, yes. They have a lot of windows.
We have had visits by, one visit by, then I believe, Sal Menor, which was years ago, who had made some
recommendations as far as strengthening the building. And I'm sure a lot of other properties have as
well.
This includes major, major construction to strengthen the building to include shutters, reinforcing with
different types of windows, metal structures to strengthen the windows and the building itself. In talking
with professionals and I, I'm not going to allude to that this is the solution. We have areas in our hotel
that are designated as safe areas, in other words, stairwells, so forth and back of house areas, which are
totally enclosed in concrete and not on the ground level. So those areas, yes, we feel confident that those
areas will withstand the storm effects itself
Then the concern comes, the aftereffects, what we do from that point on as far as then allowing habitation
in the building. But this also includes as part of our plan anyway, our plan is to include, try to include,
anyway the, the residents of the Makena area, not to say that we are capable of it now. We are working
towards to, towards that area, so that we can include not only our own, but also the families of our
employees if they're here.
You know, you brought up the fact that police officers oftentimes have a tough choice to make, do I serve
or do I protect my family? Well, we want to make sure that those essential employees who are coming
back say, okay, bring your families with you as well, so at least your family can be together while you're
working. Now, you can't have 500 employees and their families housed in a home, there's no way. But
obviously those who are coming, we try to make, we're trying to make those accommodations available
to them if at all possible to make things a little bit easier.

at our .... H''"'U'"'
so isolated, from
Wailea, Kihei
would we
an event a (USiast<~r.
would we be able to encompass those who are in our residential area as wen? I am certain that to some
extent, yes, the residents will probably head towards these structures, as wen as those shelters designated
by Civil Defense for evacuation.
n."-,,,-vu
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know that's very much appreciated that your organization would
be willing to open your, your building to surrounding residents. And I would hope that there would be,
that would be the impetus for a plan for all along the south shore until we see what kind of evacuation
plan there is. Because the last thing we want, Mr. Chair, is for Piilani and South Kihei Road to be stalled
in gridlock for people trying to get to high land when in fact there is safe shelter right there in South Maui
ifthey only were aware that they could go there. So, thank you very much for being here.

MR. TANAKA: You're welcome.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, one last, I'll, Chair will permit one last question.
Unfortunately, we're under some time constraints today. We do have a Human Concerns meeting at 1:30,
and we do have several more items on our docket today.
The Chair does plan to revisit this matter at a future date, and in the meantime, you can forward questions
to the Committee for any agencies to respond to as well. So, with that being said, Member Johnson, one
or maybe two questions for Mr. Tanaka.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. My, my only question, Mr. Chair, would be that because of the things
that we've seen in the news and because what I've gone through. When you have guests and when there
is advance warning that there is a storm coming or an event, hurricane, do you encourage your guests to
leave? Like, I, I know that's what's happenings right now, many of the people made a choice to stay in
Honduras and they're having a terrible time getting out.

MR. TANAKA: Right. We have not in the past; however, it is something that and again it's in its initial stage,
because we're always constantly working the plan. That's one of the proposals that I have is that we do
include a letter to the guests, a notification to the guests that maybe it's best that maybe you :fly out to get
away from this possible effect that may be coming. It has not been part of our plan, but it's something
that we are definitely looking at as far as the proposing prob ... , you know, and again it's, again, the
I
to
is to
to

agam,
discussion on this matter today, but as I stated earlier, we will bring this matter back.
consider a possible site inspection of our own Civil Defense facilities as well.
So, Members, with that being said, Chair would like to just offer just one last comment on this. After
hearing the presentation from Ms. Foust and the Red Cross, as well the comments from Ms. Correa and
Mr. Tanaka, the Chair is very much appreciative of your efforts to address disaster preparedness, which I
believe all of us take seriously.
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The Chair is just left with some questions running through my mind as to what is going on with our own
Maui County Civil Defense. Are we ready? The public deserves answers. And I would like to give the
Department an opportunity to respond to the public and their concerns at a future meeting, hopefully
sometime soon.
As it was pointed out during the discussion, the Civil Defense Director is generally looked at as the go-to
person in the event of a disaster. The person that, I presume, would link or coordinate aU of our
emergency personnel and relief agencies should we have a natural disaster. So rUleave that as it is and if
there are no objections, Members, the Chair will defer this matter.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION. (Excused: GRH)

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Members, it is 11 o'clock. The Chair would like to give you a short
break to address your personal needs. We shall reconvene this meeting at 11:10.... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

11:00 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:10 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: .. . (gavel). " Committee of the Whole meeting for November 1st is now back in session.
Members, we will now address Committee of the Whole Item 1(28).
COW-l(28)

SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION OF CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS (GARY AIWOH! V.
COUNTY OF MAUl, CASE NOS. 7-89-06662 AND 7-92-03113) (C.C. No. 05-24)

CHAIR MOLINA: Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated October 18,2005, from the Corporation
a proposed

you,
IS a
out
related injuries sustained on November 30, 1989 and June 27, 1992. These injuries occurred while
preparing paperwork. I am requesting executive session in order to discuss medical and personnel
Issues.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Martin. Committee Members, any questions in open session for
either Ms. Martin or Chief Nakashima?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What'd she say? Too much caffeine.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Seeing none. The Chair has heard from the Corporation Counselor that a request for
executive session has been made. Any comments? If not, the Chair will make a recommendation to go
into executive session. Do we have a motion?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Is there a second? Seconded by Member Tavares. Any questions as it relates to the
motion? Seeing none. All those in favor signifying by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any noes?

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Hokama, Mateo, PontaniUa and
Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Johnson.
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11:12 a.m.

RECESS:

(THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING ENTERED INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT
11:17 A.M. AND ENDED AT 11:31 A.M.)
RECONVENE:

11:33 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel) . .. Committee of the Whole meeting for November 1,2005, is now back in
session. Members, we are on Committee of the Whole Item 1(28), which is the settlement authorization
of claims and lawsuits regarding the Gary Aiwohi v. County of Maui case.

COW-1(28)

SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION OF CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS (GARY AIWOHI V.
COUNTY OF MAUl, CASE NOS. 7-89-06662 AND 7-92-03113)

(e.c. No. 05-24)

CHAIR MOLINA: Your Chair's recommendation is to entertain a motion to support the proposed resolution,
which is to authorize the settlement of this case.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Hokama. Any discussion?
Seeing none. All those in favor signifying by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?

ABSENT:
EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPT RESOLUTION.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank: you, Members. Chair will mark it unanimous. We're now on Committee of
the Whole Item 3(3), Hawaii State Association of Counties (HSAC) 2006 Legislative Package.
COW-J(Jl

HAWAII STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (HSAC) (2006 HSAC LEGISLATIVE
PACKAGE)

(e.c. No. 05-21)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated October 24,2005, from
Councilmember Kane, transmitting correspondences dated October 18,2005, from the HSAC President
requesting consideration of the following proposals for possible inclusion in the 2006 HSAC Legislative
Package, which is one, to amend the applicability of the Sunshine Law, and two, to repeal sunset dates
for public beach signage and exception to liability for County lifeguard services and improved public
lands signage.
And at this point, we have from the Mayor's office as well to join us in our proceedings today, we have
Mr. DeLeon, and from the Corporation Counsel's Office, we have Traci Fujita Villarosa.
Members, the Chair would like to just make an opening comment on this before we have discussion.
Provided for you was a copy of a newspaper article, which appeared in the Wednesday,
October 26, 2005 edition of The Honolulu Advertiser, a story that was entitled, "Council seeks looser
closed meeting rules". The author of this story was Robbie Dingman, and in the second paragraph it
states, the Maui County Council proposed the change.
Now, I would just like to inform the public this is the first time that this body of the Council has
addressed this matter. So, it is the Chair's opinion that this wording in the story is very misleading. It
may leave readers with the impression that this Council has already made a decision on this matter as it
relates to the Sunshine Law.
So, I would just like to make that clarification to everyone in the public. This is the first time that this
is addressing
matter. Now,
proposal was made
at this
we are COIlSHler:mg

And so I was able to get a copy of that resolution for the Members to see, and they say the -- what,
one, two, three, four -- fifth whereas, whereas primarily for this reason the Maui County Council has
requested the County Councils to include in the 2006 Legislative Package of the Hawaii State
Association of Counties a proposal to one, make the Sunshine Law inapplicable to each County Council,
and two, require each County Council to establish open meeting provisions by its own rules and
procedures. I mean this right here is a violation of the Sunshine Law, so I'm going to have this passed
out. Thank: you, Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. And Member Kane and just before I recognize Member
Kane, the reporter did not interview anyone, or at least to my knowledge, from this County Council with
regards to this matter. So that is what I find questionable as well. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just to provide some clarity since I'm sure every Member
has their level of concern regarding the story that Ms. Anderson is citing. We went ahead and contacted
the Honolulu City Council, and there's a few things that I wanted to provide clarity to.
First, in the minutes of the Committee meeting, the, the Council Member, who was proposing the
resolution, specifically stated in his comments on record that a Member of the Maui County Council
made the proposal for discussion. They also acknowledged that the fifth whereas, which Ms. Anderson
cites, was done in error; and therefore, at their meeting of November 9th, which is the full Council
meeting at the Honolulu City Council they have already drafted and are prepared to present an
amendment to make the correction, and have apologized to me and also have asked me to apologize to
this body for that, for that error that was made as far as in the resolution.
So two things: first, in the Hawaii State Association of Counties meeting when this was a proposal, it
was very clear that a Member of, of a Council made a proposal, which is what the procedures are
for -- and we all follow these procedures -- for any package items to be presented as we are all general
members of the Hawaii State Association of Counties. And two, that, that was reiterated, in those
opening remarks regarding the proposal of the resolution that it was done by a Council Member.
So I just wanted to provide that to bring light to the situation, it was not something intentionally done.
Unfortunately, the writer of the story supposedly didn't do their due diligence and go do follow-up with
any Members of this body to verify their information that they would be reporting on. So it's an
unfortunate incident, and so I'm glad that we're here today for the first time to have this discussion.
Thank you.

Member Kane; however, I, you
when a
is adopted
a
game to assume that, that the information in the resolution is accurate, and so I don't fault the, the author
of the story. What I fault is the City and County of Honolulu for making this error. And, and, you
know, they, they should have requested some substantiation. This is not a minor thing. This is not a
minor thing at all. It's not like they left out one word in error. They're saying the Maui County Council.
And so, I mean, that's why it's really important that we have the Sunshine Law to force people to provide
accurate information to the public.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Chair.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: If I may, a point of clarification. Again, I'd like to reiterate that this was a resolution
that was passed out of a Committee at the City Council as a recommendation to the full Council and that
the official action, which is going to take place or scheduled to take place on November 9th, at the
Honolulu Hale Council Chambers, that's where the official action will take place and have, we have
been assured that they are already in the process of finalizing their amendment to make the correction
and to provide more accuracy to their resolution.
So, I, again I just wanted to make that clarification, and they did admit that it was an error and one of
their staff members took responsibility. And the Council Member, who had made the proposal, also
accepts responsibility for that. And again, the apologizes were, were sent forward to this body on their
part and they regret the error. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. And for the record, I presume they will be sending us a
copy of that revised resolution as well.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, we haven't made that request, but again, that's something, if you'd like to, I
have no problem with making contact with them and asking them to provide us with that information.
CHAIR MOLINA: And that would be much appreciative, Member Kane. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson, followed by Mr. Hokama.

as

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let,
me first be one to state that I prepared a
proposal for consideration that is before this Committee this morning for discussion for the first time.
Let me give you some background. Some of you may already may be very well aware that our sister
counties, particularly Kauai and the City and County of Honolulu has issues that are, are before the
Judicial Branch for a judgment by a Circuit Court judge regarding portions of the Sunshine Law. And I
can tell you that I've been requested by the other Council Chairs to attend meetings with our Corporation
Counsel to listen to their issues, their concerns, and never once was in the discussion of the four of us
with our Corporation Counsels a desire to cut off Sunshine.
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And I wish that some of the testifiers that made comments earlier this morning's meeting would still be
here, so they can hear some information that I think might be helpful in their outlook on how we are
proceeding. Now first, let me state, Mr. Chairman, that, you know, this Council as well as Councils of
the past have been very supportive of continuing to be very open and to provide information.
Currently, I believe we are the only Council that has budgeted sufficient funds to have an Committee
meetings as well as the Council meetings to be fully televised on our Akaku station. This Council and
previous Councils have continued to put forth funds to get our minutes transcribed within parameters of
reasonableness as required by law to provide the public the ability to have written documentation of our
minutes of meetings held regarding specific issues.
I think we have also shown a extraordinary ability or, or a practice, Mr. Chairman, that prior, normally,
prior to entering executive session, we try to exhaust all open session questions that are pertinent to the
issue before the Committee before entering such executive sessions.
Now, we are well aware of Kauai's case before the, I believe, the Third [sic] Circuit Court with their
issue regarding Sunshine Law and executive sessions. We're also aware of the City and Council of
Honolulu's legal issue regarding a re-organizational procedure that they have conducted.
While the Council of the County ofMaui has not entered into any of those two legal disputes and we are
neither a party to, but we are obviously observing what is happening there. We have discussed by our
review of Mr. Kondo, who is the person in charge of the Office of Informational Practices, OIP. And
some of the concerns that came to us, and you know, I found one of the reasons why I decided to draft a
proposal to bring it forward for discussion is what we have found at times to be a very inflexible and
unworkable interpretation from Mr. Kondo. And whether or not it was the intent of the Legislature to
create such a situation, that is still to be determined in the future.

participation.
As it regards to those who have fear that by asking to be recognized as a legislative body
... (CHANGE TAPE). .. we're going to cut off Sunshine. While that was the, you know, one of the
options the State Legislature choose, which was to exempt themselves but still hold the County
governments responsible to their law. I don't see us in anyway trying to undermine or shut off the
public's participation or ability to receive information from the government.
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But one thing that I can tell you is that some of the recent opinions of Mr. Kondo and I will tell you
some of my concerns is that at times his office will provide verbal opinions and not follow up with any
written documentation for us to rely on in future situations. That I find disturbing. And when he has
made interpretations in areas of uncertainty by the State Statute, I believe as our sister counties are going
through their judicial tribulations, we'll find it not to be practical and reasonable in Mr. Kondo's
interpretation as it is applied to the actual practice by the bodies.
So I had proposed couple things to my fellow Council Chairs that we should seek possibly one, because
we are a creature of the constitution now, Mr. Chairman, the counties, that we may want to seek status
as a legislative body as one way to take us out of what Mr. Kondo views as the Council is a board or a
commission, which I don't agree with.
Second, I had also tossed to my fellow Chairs that the possibility then might be also we might want to
consider redefining areas of, that need interpreting, that the Office of Informational Practices would
interpret in a reasonable and practical manner. 'Cause at times, people want their government to
function so fast because of certain responses, like the current energy crisis on fuel cost. Okay. Here we
are six weeks later, we are in receipt of a communication from our own Mayor saying he's going to
withdraw his tax proposal, holiday proposal and it's passed. But what if we did take it up that fast?
You know, there's some inconsistencies and conflicts in our government. While we want full public
participation and that takes time, sometimes our community wants us to respond so fast that the
procedure and processes make it unattainable.
Sometimes they want us to be so efficient like a business, and yet then there are times when the
community wants us to be all-encompassing and take care of the under-served, the underprivileged, the
disadvantaged, and not be as efficient as maybe others might want. I just bring this up, Mr. Chairman,
because this is a hard one, but I think what we are asking for from the Office of Information Practices or
to have the Legislature consider is that the law needs to be revised. It needs to be more workable, so
can
to

the
example
going to say is interesting.
on our posting requirements, what we can and cannot talk in public or in private. Take for example our
last Council meeting. We had an official request from Campaign Spending, Mr. Watada, for all Council
Members to be present at the same time. Our Clerk's Office did their job. They contacted OIP. Do we
need to post this meeting, at least make people aware that they will be speaking to all the Members at
one time? And the telephone response, that we can verify by both our Clerk and Deputy Clerk, was, no,
you don't need to post. Although aU the Members wiH be there, we'll be an discussing things relating to
a State Law. We may have questions, but we weren't required to post. Interesting, interesting.
- 45-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council ofthe County of Maui

November 1, 2005

So again, Mr. Chainnan and my fellow colleagues, it is a proposal. It is not a position anyone of us has
taken. I have provided, provided a vehicle to start the discussion and to share with you some of the
concerns our sister counties are facing in trying to do the people's business.
Now, whether this goes forward or not, it's going to be up to this Committee, but I think it's something
we need to look at to see is there some way we can make areas that need interpretation or practical and
reasonable for everybody, Mr. Chainnan.
And the last point is hopefully, part of this will also include that if there is to be relief from the law
regarding this because Mr. Kondo believes only the Office of Infonnational Practices can re-review their
own opinion. And I'm sure the Third [sic] Circuit Court judge is in full disagreement with that. There is
a judicial relief that the Councils can seek and they will not seek relief from the party or office that
makes the decision.
So, I just shared that that is some of the understanding that I have that has been in discussions with all
other Councils through their Chainnen's participation and our Corporation's participation. So, I thank,
thank you, Mr. Chainnan, for letting me give some background and reasons why this proposal is being
put forward. 'Cause I had presented two, I believe, at the HSAC Executive Committee meeting that
Mr. Kane presented. And I believe the City and Council of Honolulu had preferred that we consider just
one vehicle to send to the State Legislature than multiple vehicles so that we could possibly concentrate
on all our efforts on just one bill for an act. Now, whether we want to support that position or not is still
open to debate and decision, Mr. Chainnan. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Well, this is a very perplexing issue to say the least. The
Chair is going to proceed in the following manner. I'm going to ask each and every Member to give
comments if they choose to do so on this matter. And after every Member has had a chance to
comment, I'm going to ask Administration -- I see Mr. DeLeon here -- to briefly give a comment or two
on this matter. We'll start first with Member Tavares.

"'"".-'!-"rl"",rI to
I,
for their selves, value the fact that aU of our decisions are made
public sessions.
example
that was given out in Hana, I wish we'd get more infonnation about that because that doesn't happen
because somebody votes backdoor that we're going to allow this development. That doesn't happen. It
might be something else with the grading pennits or something like that, but it's beyond, if it's
happening like that, it's beyond our purview.

Our County Budget is done totally in open session for days and nights over six to eight weeks. And we
keep hearing the same complaint, over and over again, about how much money goes to what in our
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County. Every member of the community has opportunities galore to express their concerns about how
their tax dollars are being spent. That happens in open session.
And the most perturbing thing I think I heard this morning was that they think that if we pass this, that
means we're going to become a closed door group of people. That is not going to happen, none of us
can stand for something like that, and expect to be elected or re-elected. The people want to participate
in their government. And Maui County, I think, stands head and shoulders above any other County in
the degree of participation by its community in all aspects of the community and its government.
So if this were to be granted, if this were to happen where the County would have the same benefit as a
Legislature in that we are elected legislative bodies, then I am sure and I'll bet my life on it that we are
going to come up with our own rules of engagement, of discussion, of participation, that will be similar
to or the same as what we have now.
This system works, and I don't think we're going to say, no, we don't want the public involved anymore;
no, we're not going to open our doors, we're not even going to tell them where the meeting is, we're just
going to have one. You know, we're watching too many gangster movies, I think. This is an insult to
me and it should be an insult to every Member on this Council that members of the public think that we
would go running behind closed doors to make deals.
So maybe I shouldn't have spoken, Mr. Chairman, but I feel very strongly about this. I have devoted
10 years of my life almost to this particular job, and the reason why I did it, like all of us, was to do
something good for our community. And part of that is their involvement in our process, a huge part of
it.
So, Mr. Chairman, I would like to learn a little more about this proposal and about what other options
we may have before I, you know, make a final decision as to whether or not I will support what's on the
floor. Thank you.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member Mateo.
COVNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And like the, my colleagues who have spoken before
me, I think the existing system for us has been very transparent. I think it's, it's evident through just
processes that, that we, through Committee business especially and through Council, has, has
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maintained the last number of years. It is transparent, it is open, we've always encouraged participation,
and if we don't get participation, we go after them to come in and participate.
Sunshine, Sunshine has its advantages. But as an elected official, Sunshine also has its limitations on
my ability to represent the constituency that elected me in part to participate. And that isn't really the
intent of Sunshine, but it's limiting because it puts, it puts restrictions on what we can and cannot do.
So I have my own concerns and I think if it engages the opportunity for discussion, then all good
because it gives us that opportunity to, to not only gain from our County's discussion but from counties
throughout the State's discussion as welL So at this particular point, Chairman, I'm intrigued with the
possibility of having a discussion that we'll be able to openly discuss and see what or which way we can
tweak Sunshine to make it more functional for us as elected officials to do our job even better. Thanks,
Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for this opportunity to speak I did prepare a few comments
to, to provide this morning, so if I may, I'd like to proceed with that. Before making a decision on this
important matter, I wanted to first take the opportunity to listen to and hear the opinions of, of the
people, of those, as you've mentioned, Chair, had been contacting our office; testimony this morning;
just in the public, touching base with people who are aware of this, thanks to that article that showed up
last week; and especially my colleagues here this morning, who are sharing their comments with this.
But I also wanted to do some research, you know, so I started by looking to the policy intent of
Chapter 92 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, which is often referred to as the Sunshine Law. So
Subsection 92-1, which is entitled, "Declaration of policy and intent", I'd like to read that into the record.
And it goes like this, "In a democracy, the people are vested with the ultimate decision-making power.
to
the tonmatIOn

It is
to
to
meetings shaH be liberally construed;
proVISIOns
meeting requirements shall be strictly construed against closed meetings. "

I also noticed, Mr. Chair, that a note regarding an Attorney General opinion and its Attorney General
Opinion No. 86-5 says and I quote, "Interpretation of Board as", quote, "excluding County Council
would be inconsistent with policy and intent of Sunshine Law. "
Also listening to the discussion this morning, I took some time to reflect on what really is the crux of our
challenge with respects to the Sunshine Law. If it comes down to the almighty efficiency argument,
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which for me personally, Chair, I find it inherently conflicting with democracy, and it was described
earlier by one of my colleagues that the people want efficiency. Unfortunately, efficiency is a creature
of private corporate, if you will, thought and for them to be successful in profit-making, efficiencies are
there to make sure that they can reach their bottom line that, that they desire to achieve.
Unfortunately, in government we're unable to do that because we have, what we have in front of us, a
Sunshine Law that protects everybody's ability to have information and participate in the
decision-making processes.
So which is more important, efficiency or providing the people's right to know and participate? What
we have before us is, is a proposal and I, and I thank the Chair of our Council for bringing this forward
because this is an important discussion. And it's very important because time and time again we are
asked to react quickly, efficiently to matters that we face. Unfortunately, the function of our body is not
to react quickly and efficiently, but it's to deliberate and to think through our response to issues that face
our County.
And so, because I'm put in a position as one individual member of a body who has a relationship with
three other respective bodies for a total of 34 Council Members throughout the State in four counties, it's
my opinion that although this is a tool for us to consider, for me, it is not the best tool, I think, for us to
use in trying to resolve some of the shortfalls of the challenges we have with the Sunshine Law.
Specifically, what we have before us is the inclusion of each County Council to Subsection 92-10 of the
Sunshine Law and the applicability of the legislative branches. And because I, I believe that this would
not be the best tool for us to use, and there are many tools, I think, that we need to explore, and it's going
to be very challenging for us to get there, I will not be supporting the proposal that's before us this
morning, regarding the inclusion of each County Council to that section of the subsection of the Statute.
I agree that the people are vested with the ultimate decision-making power. I also agree that opening up

one thing
more
it
gives us answers.
the past, when we've considered things through Hawaii State Association of
Counties, I guess what I'm used to is that the body considers it, and then it's disseminated, I guess, for
transmission to HSAC.
So I was a bit taken aback when I saw the article appear in the Honolulu paper, and there was already a
measure before it when I basically was uninformed about this. So for me, the timing and how this all
came about was not something I would like to see and I do accept, you know, the Chair's explanation,
and I would hope that when we're entertaining any kind of proposals that come from within the body
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that we at least try to, prior to the introduction by any Council Member, at least try to get feedback from
our own County as to whether or not there is enough support.
We all know that HSAC requires unanimous support if it's going to be included in the package. So if
there are doubts or if it's not even going to be supported by our Council, automatically we know it's not
going to pass. So, I think that procedurally would be a more logical way to approach this kind of, I
guess, introduction into some other kind of form. I prefer to have things done in that way.
But the one question I would ask, Mr. Chair, too, is that because of prior opinions, which we have been
made aware of and which we've received in writing that relates specifically to the organization of the
Council, it doesn't seem that the most recent OIP opinion really supports that.
So, I think, from my perspective anyway, I really am unclear about whether an organizational meeting
of the County Council or let's say the meetings prior to the actual organizational meeting, which lead up
to a decision, which is made in public. But there are negotiations, if you will, or there are other
discussions that take place outside of the public's view, which often lead up to what the ultimate
decision is that's facing this Council in terms of who wiB serve on what Committees. There are
discussions and I'm just going to, you know, say that on the OIP opinion that we have received
previously, which would basically support that that's not a bad thing that you need to have that in order
to find out what the consensus is where different people want to go. I'm really conflicted because now
on the one hand you've got that kind of an opinion, which supports and says, that's okay; and then you
have the other opinion that would say, it's not okay.
So, I think, this bears much more discussion before any of us or at least myself could render any kind of
an opinion and I would like personally to know if the organizational meeting and the way that its been
conducted in the past, with some of the discussion going on outside of this chambers in a public forum,
where does that fit into the mix? So I'm one that when I first came on the Council, the first thing I
wanted to do, and some people didn't like it, but it was a very open approach, I wanted everybody to
"""TIT"'£'! a
it was.

CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, and I'll state my point as concisely as I can. The Hawaii State Association
of Counties Executive Board has conducted and continue to conduct the process consistently.
Everybody is asked for a proposal, every individual general member, which comprises of 34 Council
Members through out the State. They submit that to the Executive Board. The Executive Board
decides, as a body, what goes out as a consideration for a package, including this one. This one was one
of a few that was considered to be sent out as a potential package item.
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That process was followed this time, as well as all the other times that I've been involved with HSAC.
So nothing has changed. It is the process that's followed, and that provides everybody with the
opportunity to discuss a proposal or a number of proposals. So, same thing here, so I just wanted to
provide that, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for the clarification. Members, the Chair is well aware of the time. We
do have a 1:30 Human Concerns meeting scheduled for today; and obviously, this particular item as well
as the next item will be generating some discussion. At this point, the Chair will ask for your
indulgence so I will call for a one minute break to consult with staff about the options to consider as far
as a recess to address these matters. Meeting in recess subject to the call ofthe Chair. " .(gavel)...

RECESS:

12:16 p.m.

RECONVENE:

12:19 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: Committee of the Whole meeting for November 1st is now back in session. Thank you very
much, Members, for that break. I have consulted with staff as well as Member Mateo who has a
1:30 meeting today regarding Housing and Human Concerns. And the Chair would like to present the
body a couple of options to consider as a recess date or time. One option is to consider reconvening at
3:30 today to finish up these last two items on the agenda, or we could look at Friday, possibly after
Council meeting, maybe 1:30, as, as a possible option.
The Chair would like to maybe go for a few more minutes today, well, just at least to get some
comments on this item and maybe to get your feedback as to a possible recess time. The floor is open.
Members, comments? The Chair has a preference for recessing today if possible, that is your Chair's
preference, but I am open to the consideration of the body and win honor the will of the majority.
Members? Member Tavares.
we

comments

recess.

Member Anderson,
course
to keep our comments
ten
minute frame. Member Anderson. We are making comments on the Committee of the Whole Item 3(3).
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know, I've been holding my breath-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I,
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --for the last 20 minutes.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Just in case to remind everyone. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I had no problem reconvening at 3:30 today, Mr. Chairman. You
know the proposal that's before us, the justification sheet, this is what we're being asked to base our
decision on. And I have a real hard time with this justification sheet, because it's full of mis ... , mis ... ,
misrepresentations and, and error of fact, and it's written by, it sounds like it's written by somebody that
doesn't even understand the Sunshine Law.
I'm glad Mr. Kane spoke to the purpose and intent of the Sunshine Law. I was going to do the same
thing. I think it's important that we remind people why we have this Law. You know I think that this,
this looks like, more like a personal vendetta against Mr. Kondo, who I think is doing a fabulous job for
the Office of Information Practices, and the City and County of Honolulu don't like it because he's put
out an opinion telling them that theire violating the Sunshine Law if they have serial one-on-one
discussions .. . (CHANGE TAPE) . .. that could end up being a deliberative process behind closed doors
to make decisions on how they're going to run their Council. So, you know, Mr. Kondo didn't, didn't
determine that, that County Councils as a legislative body are, are underneath the Sunshine Law. That
was determined in 1986.
The justification says the Sunshine Law detracts from the effectiveness of the County Councils in
carrying out their legislative responsibilities. It doesn't say how it detracts. No example given
whatsoever. I totally disagree with that statement. In fact I think it's just the opposite. Goes on to say
that in many cases legislative board members cannot attend the same gatherings or even listen to the
same discussions without having to conform to the three major Sunshine Law requirements; posting,
accepting testimony, and written minutes, and so forth. That's totally inaccurate. All of us here go to
conferences all the time to gather information and we're not subjected to the Sunshine Law.
The Sunshine Law is for the deliberative process of the body who is making a decision that will have an
effect on the public, and we don't do that at informational meetings. It's very specific as to what the
Spending
to
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we are
to
recognized as a ..",;;;,."...",,,
anything to do with us being recognized as a legislative body. We are definitely a legislative body,
in our County Code. And that the Law needs to be revised, but it's, there's no statement as to how it
needs to be revised.
So, you know I don't think we should be throwing out the baby with the bath water. If, if various
County Councils have problems with the Law then they should be addressing the specific concerns that
they have and asking the Legislature to adopt amendments to the Law. But just to ask us to exempt
County Councils from the Sunshine Law that takes us backwards 20 years. This County Council and
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this County has been on the forefront of championing the Sunshine Law, so that we're opening
government process to our community and including them in the deliberative process.
I mean, and, and, and if we, if we step outside that, those requirements, there are people in this County
who are fully akamai to what Chapter, Chapter 92 says and are not one bit afraid to take us to court over
it. And, and as such we are still under a consent decree for not following the Sunshine Law. And that
has made us at the forefront of complying with this Law, which is why we aren't having any problems
withOIP.
It's City and County of Honolulu and the County of Kauai that have the problems, and they want us to
come in and back them up. Well, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I think they should be following our example,
and, and if they got a problem with the Sunshine Law, then they should be specific about how they
wanted it amend, how they want it amended and not ask us to come in and back them up and even in
error say that we already do, in getting City, City and County Councils exempted from the Sunshine
Law.
As I said, opening -- this is another justification that they've got here -- open meeting Law prevents
Legislators from participating in -- did I already say that?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Dh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, they actually repeat it as another, this is, I don't see any justification
in here whatsoever that is actually factual. You know, I think it would be everyone, to everyone's
advantage on this Council, on all of our boards and commissions, all of our Corporation Counsels, every
director in this, in this County to sit down and read John Van Dyke's review and, and guidance on how
the Sunshine Law is supposed to be implemented at the local level.
You know what? This was a result of the consent decree and, and the consent decree specifically, Maui
consent
to

out to
Office
",V~UU";;'
Maui They're going to Lanai, they're going to Molokai, and rn ..
ili
here November 17 for a workshop, 9:30 a.m., at Kaunoa Center. And I hope that this County sends all
those people that I previously mentioned, who need to be updated on what the parameters are of the
Sunshine Law and, and so that we can operate fully within its context and its, and its meaning and not be
swayed by these, these justifications for exempting us from the Sunshine Law that really have no fact or
basis. If you read the Law none of these justifications are in the Law; in fact, it's just the opposite in
many cases. So I certainly will not be supporting this and, and I just want to comment that, you know-'UTP
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CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson, if you could keep your comments brief, I do want to go to Mr. Carroll
and-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well-CHAIR MOLINA: --I'll give you an opportunity during the recess to-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman-CHAIR MOLINA: --further elaborate.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --but everyone else had their full, full share and-CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, they did.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and I'm going to have mine, too.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Well I'll permit it for, permit you one more minute, and then I'll go to Mr. Carron,
and I'll give you more time during the recess to further comment. Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You can't really fault the people who came
and spoke out of fear. Because all they saw was that the Maui County Council ... I mean they read it in
the paper. They didn't have a phone call from somebody at, at HSAC to teB them, oh, this was a
mistake. That's all they had to go by is what they read and what's posted on our agenda is that we, we
have a proposal to exempt County Councils from the Sunshine Law.
So, of course, they're going to be extreme in their testimony, and maybe it's insulting to people but what
else did they have to go on? And so, I mean, I win have more to say about this later, I appreciate your
wants

And I'm sorry, I appreciate the Member who brought this forward, I appreciate his trying to help out his
fellow Members and our sister Councils, but you know the Big Island isn't having a problem, the Big
Island is right on track with OLP. And as a matter of fact, I had quite a long conversation with
Mr. Les Kondo just a few days ago about this, and it's only the City and County of Honolulu and Kauai,
who seem to have a problem, because they're violating the Law and they're being called on it. So, thank
you for my time, I appreciate your bringing this forward and letting us all have a chance to express our
opmlOn.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. It's a very sensitive issue indeed. Mr. Carroll, thank you
for waiting so patiently.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. Out of respect for fellow Council Members and our staff, I win
keep my remarks exactly to 60 seconds. First of all, a test ... , one testifier was talking about Hana and a
meeting in Hana. I want to inform the public and I hope they're still watching the ones that heard her
remarks, that meeting had nothing to do with this Council, nothing to do with government. It was a
meeting strictly between the community and Hana Ranch talking about housing and that was it. There
was no secrets or anything to do with us at all, and I hope everybody hears that.
The second thing is my first six months on this Council, I tried to address a few of the things like the
five working days between notification for recesses, five days, tried to see if anybody would address
making it five working days since it was difficult when weekends interfered and a few other things
about the ... Council Member Anderson talked about more than one Member being at, for instance,
Kihei Community Association meetings, which we have been advised that we should not have more
than two on many occasions, which limits our participation. And they said that, are you trying to make
trouble? And this meeting is a good example of what they meant, it's a very difficult subject, and I'm
glad we're talking about it now, somebody is. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. And no need to rush, Mr. Carroll. You will be given another
opportunity to comment as well as every other Member to comment when we recess if there are no
objectives today at 3:30, Members? The Chair will obviously have a lot to say, so I'd prefer to save my
comments for that time out of respect for the needs of everyone to take a lunch break, a well-deserved
one indeed. So, this Committee of the Whole meeting for November 18t is in recess. We shall
reconvene at 3:30 today.... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

12:35 p.m.

Chair would like to take
moment to share
Administration about this proposal as well.
First of all, Members, I for one agree that there are some inconveniences for elected officials with the
Sunshine Law. We all have our own way of dealing with these inconveniences and how we reach the
decisions we make as representatives of the people. I disagree respectfully with the testifier this
morning who implied that this Council was, I guess, in their own, well, way, implying that we've been
hiding decisions or making secretive, backroom decisions, I should say, we're hiding information from
the public and making so-called backroom decisions. I disagree with that.
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Compared to Councils from long ago, this Council has been very open and forthright with the posting of
information and agendas. We've increased our, I guess, our Committee meetings in terms of television
coverage for the public to see what we do here in the chambers. And I just cannot agree with the, I
guess, the individual's implying that we do things secretively. I believe we have a responsibility as
elected officials, an obligation to our public to maximize open and accessible government. People have
the right to know.
I agree that the Sunshine Law, to some extent, may need to be tweaked, but I have some reservations as
to the need for an overhaul and by that I mean the law ... the consideration of the law being the
exemption of the County Council of the Sunshine Law. Maui County, in my mind, is very unique to the
other counties in that we deal with three islands with very different points of view on the many issues
that we have to deal with in our community. Our citizens of Maui County, in my view, have grown
accustomed to the benefits of the Sunshine Law, and I say benefits, I talk in terms of the fact that we
have to keep things as open as possible. And for me, it begs the question in my mind, is a drastic change
of exempting the Council of the Sunshine Law necessary for the good of the public? And I stress the
public, not ourselves.
I appreciate the comments made by all of you on this matter, which has many complexities and
legitimate concerns that go beyond what is on the surface at this time. And it is because of the complex
nature of this matter that was pointed out by Mr. Hokama and other Members as to why I would like you
to consider the following recommendation.
But before I do that, I'm going to have the Administration give a comment before I give my
recommendation to all of you, Members. And if any Member would like to further comment, I will give
you guys that opportunity as well. But in the meantime, we have Mr. Couch from the Mayor's Office,
who is replacing Mr. DeLeon. I will yield the microphone to you, Mr. Couch.

same
... Committee Chair
appeared
today's editorial
and also as
stated ... that does not require a blanket exemption and a lost of trust on the part
the public.
Ultimately, he feels the Legislature, too, should be bound by the Sunshine Law. Perhaps if it was, then
the Law would be written with practical considerations in mind. In essence, he's opposed to a blanket
amendment to the Law. Thank you.
-,-"-'-'JUL,,"

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Couch. Prior to recognizing Mr. Couch, Corporation Counsel, do
you have any comments?
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MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, just a short comment regarding a statement that was made earlier by
Councilmember Anderson. I just wanted to state on the record that her concern raised regarding advice
or lack thereof from our office to boards and commissions was the first time that I had heard and that our
office has heard about there being any problems. We had not received any phone call or communication
from Councilmember Anderson prior to today's meeting, and I would like to request that maybe if she
could communicate that with some examples, some specific examples about the meetings, which she
witnessed, so that our office could have an opportunity to properly follow-up on them. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Fujita Villarosa. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just a very brief comment on the Administration's view of
what we have before us. It seems as though the Mayor doesn't understand the process, because to this
point, no Member has taken a formal position, and yet the Mayor has provided comments that cite that
some Members have taken a position. I believe a couple have, but the ones who have not, I don't think
anybody has taken any type of formal position and has taken a vote.
And that's unfortunate that the Mayor has decided to come forward and make comments on something
that ultimately he has no say regarding what goes into a Legislative Package. He does have a say as far
as communicating to the Legislature on whether or not he would support something if it gets that far,
whether it's in the form of a HSAC item or a Maui County Legislative Package item. But to use those
types of comments that were just shared with us, it's my, it's my response, I believe, or comment that
unfortunately, the Mayor has demonstrated a lack of understanding of the process that we're, we're
utilizing. And in fact, I want to commend Mr. Hokama for putting this on the table, because it has risen
to a very important issue among many people throughout the State at the County Council levels.
And we're not here to ... well, I'm not here to chastise the process. I'm here to participate and get as
much people engaged in this discussion so we can understand what we face as far as the challenges
relating to Sunshine Law and the interpretation and the application by those who are provided the
to see
or not
at some

It's something that we need to do, so that we can constantly understand and remain in focus on what we
face as far as engaging with the public. And that's ultimately what the Sunshine Law is, allowing the
public to engage, and for that, that's what I support.
So, it's not about being divisive among each other. We all have our views in how this impacts us as
individuals and collectively as a body. And I wish the Mayor would have reconsidered that comment he
made, because it's almost as ifhe's trying to divide us and that's not the case at all. We're here to just
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deliberate it and in the end, we'll see where we end up. And until then, I don't see how anybody can
draw a conclusion that we've made final decisions on this. Thank: you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank: you, Member Kane. Members, any other comments? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Well, one thing I did get across is that it did
engage a lot of comment, not only by the Members, but also by people of our public, which I am
thankful for. And I had wished our media would have taken the time to participate, view this meeting
and then write their editorial. It's interesting that they've taken a position before we've even discussed
it.
So once more, like how The Advertiser made an error of judgment in not re-verifying their comments
and what they chose to make people believe was statements of fact when in actuality it was not. Once
more, our own Maui News has taken a position in advance of us deliberating and taking a position on the
issue. It's too bad that they do not report the news but continue to try and editorialize their opinion to
our residents.
But I can say to my colleagues this afternoon, that if this is not what you believe something worthy for
this Committee for consideration I have no problem with accepting that. You know, my goal was to
present it, have this discussion, have the Committee make a determination whether or not it was worthy
for their support consideration. But as our colleague from the County of Kauai, Chairman Kaipo Asing
says, until you sit in our seat and go through what we're going through currently, it's hard for you to
understand. And maybe that's so. You know, we don't know what those seven members of our, of our
sister County of Kauai is going through.
I can tell you though that in our next meetings that we share as all four Counties together, you know,
you might want to chat with them. You will see frustration on their part, as Chairman Asing has shared
with the other Chairmen, including myself, his, his frustration about being so unsure of what they can
cannot
to

areas that is
specifically clear on
administer this program.
And there's two things I would suggest. That one, we consider a bill for an act that would state that
interpretations from OIP shall be in a reasonable and practical manner. And that OIP will take into
account and review our practices, see how we conduct the people's business, and then make an opinion
that can address the concern yet still be workable for the Councils to do their work and still have the
community, the public provide information as wen, as well as observance of how we do the people's
work.
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And I think something that I had mentioned, Third Circuit, that's incorrect. My understanding from our
attorneys, Kauai is Second Circuit? So, nope. First Circuit? What is Kauai? Fourth Circuit, Fifth
Circuit, whatever circuit it is, it's at that level, Mr. Chairman. But I think that Judge Matsuoka of the
Kauai Circuit Court did make a point that I've taken very strong notice of, and that we may also want to
have the Statute or the Sunshine Law revised, so that relief of opinions that any County feels is incorrect
or oppressive or unfunctionable [sic], can seek judicial relief through the court system. And that a judge
weighing the merits of the arguments can then render a decision that is fair. And that might be the more
appropriate appeal process that a judge, upon hearing the arguments, will render a decision. And that we
will not operate from an opinion but a judicial decision.
And so, I, I bring that up, because I've listened well, I've paid attention. And I had hoped that more
people would have looked at an opportunity to improve the situation than believe that we would have
regressed and tried to close doors because that was never my intention in proposing a point of discussion
for today, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Your comments are well-taken. And to say that your
proposal has elicited a lot of comments, again, that is an understatement. But I want to thank you for
bringing it out, because I think it, I think we need to have thorough, well thought-out discussion on very
sensitive matters like this. And I believe, while I listened to Member Kane make his comments, we had
a testifier today that expressed a need for more night meetings and public hearings.
Wen, we've just recently finished the GPAC hearings and under Member Tavares' leadership she could
have easily chosen to have those meetings during the afternoon hours, but she decided, along with the
rest of us, to accommodate the working public so they could come out and see all the people who are
applying for the GPAC as well as observe the deliberations that went on.
So I would like to stress that this Council and recent Councils have stressed the importance of making
to
IJV""UJ1\,.<

..uH.u.....l.LU'.l.J~".. HOKAMA:
I
I
one
I want to
I
have that reconfirmed with Mr. Moto. I can appreciate comments from my colleague from West Maui,
Ms. Johnson about the organizational aspect and whether or not, and again, with aU respect to my
colleague; however, the Legislature did make a specific subsection that addressed the organizational
process of the Councils, whereby less than a quorum can meet to discuss organization of how the body
will do business. It is not a discussion of how the body will deal with issues before it or a specific,
issue-oriented discussion, but an organizational discussion is permissible under State Statute. And
again, the Legislature was very specific in making a subsection that spoke about it directly, and I'm sure
Corporation Counsel this afternoon can re-verify that portion of the Sunshine Law. Thank you.

.'-" •
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Committee Members, any other comments or requests for
questions prior to the Chair making his recommendation? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I was just going to ask for your recommendation, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh. Thank you. Well, thank you. Now that we've come to that moment, first of an I want
to again thank you all for your comments, it has been .. . (CHANGE TAPE) . .. interesting, to say the
least. Taking into the fact that this is a very complex matter, I believe it would be appropriate at this
time to consider a deferral of this item rather than taking a vote. My rationale for this is, ironically, tied
to Sunshine Law provisions, where we can give the public an opportunity to digest this -- we're not
making a decision -- and to give you, Members, as well as myself, to give us more time to look at this
issue in a more deeper, more complex matter. I believe it would give us the time to find out what the
pulse of our community is on this matter.
And I would also ask HSAC President Kane, a Member of our body here, to share comments from this
Council at his next HSAC meeting, which I believe falls in about a week or so. He could take his
comments back and share that with the other counties. And also, I would like to remind Members that
while each Member has an opportunity to introduce this matter again at a later time, whether it be
through this Committee or at the State Legislature, you know, prior to the opening of it or during.
So by no means is the book closed on it, but at this time, I see it as a time to gather more data to look at
the issue a little closer and to, again, help educate the public on what we are trying to do here or what we
are considering.
Some people in the public have come to some pre-conceived notions that, you know, this Council has
already taken a position, as you heard from some testifiers today. They're under the assumption that
decisions have been made, things are going on behind closed doors. We need to clarifY some of those
out
I

VICE-CHAIR KANE: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, one question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, either you or Mr. Kane can provide us with a date when HSAC
deadline will be to accept any consideration, please.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Staff, would you have that information?
November 10th, am I correct, staff?

I believe Mr. Kane's meeting

IS

MS. KAWASAKI: The next HSAC meeting is on Kauai on November 10th. The HSAC President, who is also
Councilmember Kane did request that the other Councils report back on any meetings that they've had
on the proposed package.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Before your deferral, which I would, I am happy to support, Mr. Chairman,
just one quick comment. I think there is merit to the second proposal in the HSAC Package, which is
from the County of Hawaii regarding the sunset date of the posting of signages, specifically around our
beach shoreline areas. I would ask that when the appropriate time, Mr. Chairman, it would be open to
considering moving that forward to the State Association. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. That is noted, Mr. Hokama. So, for the record, no objections to deferral, excuse me,
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No objections, Mr. Chair. And I think you hit, hit the nail on the head
when you said, education about this is really what's important, and maybe if nothing else that's really the
purpose that this all served. I, I would like to reiterate that the public can attend . . . the Office of
Information Practices will be holding a workshop on Maui at Kaunoa Center, 9:30 in the morning,
November 17th, and you know this is your Law. It's really the Law that gives the public their right to
have open government, and so you need to be educated, too.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. I can't think of a more timely pitch for an advertisement for
a very important issue. Members, just for the record we are deferring this portion of the proposed
package, that is just item one.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PROPOSAL REGARDING
FURTHER DISCUSSION.

SUNSHINE

LAW

PENDING

CHAIR MOLINA: So, we're on now item number two of Committee of the Whole Item 3(3), which is to repeal
sunset dates for public beach signage, an exception to liability for County lifeguard services, and
improve public land signage. At this point, the Chair will ask Member Kane, who serves as the HSAC
President to give opening comments on this proposal.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. And Members, in your packet you will see an
October 5, 2005 memo from the Hawaii County Council Chair, Mr. Stacy Higa regarding the subject of
the 2006 HSAC Legislative Package. And the two items specific that has been presented would be in
fact what you stated, Mr. Chair, repealing the sunset dates first for a bill on an act relating to public land
liability immunity, which specifically is for beach signage and lifeguard liability; and second, a bill for
an act relating to public land liability, public land signage, Sacred Falls, which repeals sunset date on
June 30, 2008.
Both these items are, as I guess we could use the language, ripe for consideration at the State
Legislature, being that we will be entering the, the Legislative Session that will be dealing with the
upcoming' 06-'07 years. And as you can see, we have items there that are going to be sunset, sunsetting
meaning that they will be removing the public land liability immunity, and that's what the sunset clause
IS.

And so, the request is to repeal the sunset clause, and so it would remain a permanent immunity as long
as the State Legislature sees, deems that fit. So the request is coming from Hawaii County Council
Chairperson to, to all the bodies in the Hawaii ... the HSAC Executive Committee thought that this was
something that was important for all the bodies of the, of the State, all the County Councils to consider
us
to

So, I ask for the body's favorable consideration. Thank
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. And for clarification the word that he used "dinero", that's a
Spanish word for money and not related to the actor, Robert De Niro. It's been a long day folks, inject a
little humor.
. . . (laughter). . .
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Very witty.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
Member Anderson.

Committee Members, comments or questions with regards to this matter?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks. I needed that. Of course I want to support this, but I also want to
know and maybe Member Kane can help us out on this. What was the Legislature's intent by putting a
sunset on both of these provisions? Why would they do that?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Kane, do you care to respond?
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you for the question, Mr. Chair, from my colleague from South Maui. I wasn't a
part of the State Legislature at the time when these laws passed, but I can assume that the forces-that-be
felt that this was something that was worth a pilot consideration, if you will, or a time frame where they
could take into consideration reviewing of what the outcome of that period of time that they allowed this
law to be in effect.
And it is the position of Chair Higa of the Big Island, as well as individual members, myself included,
that this has in fact served a public purpose, and it has limited drastically the exposure to the public with
respects to people enjoying use of public areas and wilderness areas. And by us providing signage
warning them of those dangers has protected us in a way that, quite frankly, it just comes down to
money.
We, were, we're limiting the liability of that, and they felt that it was necessary for them to, to review
the, the effectiveness of the law. And so our argument will be, if passed, that it has worked to the, in the
best interest of the citizenry at the County level, and we'd like to see them remove the sunset date so it
can be a permanent law.

comments
proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Your recommendation, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Prior to the recommendation, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. I'll make my comments after your recommendation, under discussion.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Alrighty. Seeing no other comments, the Chairs recommendation is to support the proposal
to repeal sunset dates for public beach signage and an exception to liability for County lifeguard
services, and improve public land signage, the addition to be made to our Hawaii State Association of
Counties Legislative Package.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Hokama. Member Kane,
as the maker of the motion, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I yield, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I believe we had Member Johnson. We'll follow that by, with Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm also happy to support this, because I know that for years our Legislative
Package, even prior to my getting on the Council, it was always contained that we had recreational
liability and tort reform. Because what was happening both to the Counties and to even private
businesses -- this doesn't necessarily cover private businesses -- but we have wanted tort reform for a
long time. And particularly those individuals that go out into dangerous and hazardous situations,
knowing that many times our lifeguards particularly are put at risk going out to rescue them, and then if
the person ends up being injured, still turns back on us and sues.
Or people going into lands that are public lands that they decide they're going to go hiking, and I know
the big incident with Sacred Falls on Oahu, where there were many people injured in an area that was a
known, you know, hazard area. And look at on our, our pali lookout, too, so many times, even in Hana
in other places, people don't, you know, they just don't watch what's going on.

So, I'm happy to support it. I think we need to even do more to get tort reform, because it will only, in
the long run, I think, create, I guess, an accountability on the part of people that are engaging in these
kinds of activities. If you engage in a hazardous activity, don't blame someone else or sue someone else
because you get injured when you're putting yourself at risk. It's just not right. Thank you very much,
Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Member Johnson. You make some very good comments and it's
unfortunate many of these recreational accidents involve our visitors, and I think it's so imperative that
our representatives of the visitor industry continue to, again, educate people who come here, who are not
aware of ocean conditions and areas where they shouldn't be going to, and you know, warn them about
the risk that they take. We live in a changing world. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Very quickly, Chairman. I, I, you know, I would have just mentioned what
all the other colleagues of ours have shared. One, the tort lobby, lawyers' lobby was very strong, it's still
very strong and effective at the State Capitol. And for the counties as part of our, the history of this
Legislation, Mr. Chairman, it was interesting, the State had liability immunity. The law gave private
property owners immunity, if you would remember, Members. This is at the toward the end of the '90's,
before 2000, and the counties, but, did not have that same benefit or privilege that private property
owners and the State had, which was interesting.
So, as those of us that sat in the chamber those days can recall, we had numerous, numerous beach
liability lawsuits against the County of Maui. And you know we've done our thing, the Parks
Department came up with approved signages, postings, you know. We did our part to try and provide
accurate notice of the dangers of, of entering an ocean, which we grew up with and for many of us was
common sense things. But if you come from a landlocked state I can appreciate you not understanding
undertows, currents, shore breaks, things like that.
But that was part of the, the history of the bill, Mr. Chairman, that the tort lobby was very strong in
trying to assure that they still had a venue to provide some type of legal recourse, if I could say that, for
those accidents that occurred in State waters yet would sue the County, and the County would pay for an
accident that occurred on State property. So, I'm in full support of our Big Island colleague's request
this afternoon, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Member Hokama. Any other comments as it relates to the motion
Seeing none.
to
our
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE PROPOSAL REGARDING REPEALING THE
SUNSET DATES FOR STATUTES RELATING TO PUBLIC
BEACH SIGNAGE, IMPROVED PUBLIC LANDS SIGNAGE,
AND COUNTY LIFEGUARD SERVICES FOR INCLUSION IN
THE 2006 HSAC LEGISLATIVE PACKAGE.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, we are now down to our last item for today's Committee of the Whole
Item 6(2).

COW-6(2)

MAUl COUNTY LEGISLATIVE PACKAGE (2006 MAUl COUNTY LEGISLATIVE PACKAGE)
(C.C. No. 05-22)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated August 18,2005, from your Chair
requesting proposals for a possible inclusion in the 2006 Maui County Legislative Package. And the
proposals that were received was one, to amend the applicability of the Sunshine Law, and two, to
the
to establish a
district.

Legislative Package.
we do have
regarding
is an
open item, then we could also introduce something at that time that there's going to be any interest in,
you know, having a further discussion at some later point that we could always have it introduced, you
know, via County communication. So, that way the public, in the spirit and the intent of the Sunshine
Law, is informed that we are going to perhaps have another discussion at some point in time. So, I
would ask the body's consideration since this is, I don't know, deferral, filing, either one is good for me.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Member Johnson, followed by Member Anderson.
- 66-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

November 1, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, and this is one thing that I think, at least as far as I'm concerned,
is something that we have spoken about a number of times is we have difficulty because of our, I guess,
hotels going in one area and trying to at least restrict or at least plan by having time shares in specific
zones.
CHAIR MOLINA: Sorry, Member Johnson, for now we're just talking about number one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh. I'm sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: I'll give you that opportunity later when we reach the time share portion.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh. Okay. That's, alright, that's fine. 'Cause I was thinking you were
taking, alright. I thought you were talking-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. My, my apologies.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --about both items underneath this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. At this time, we're considering the recommendation of Councilmember Kane to
consider filing this item,-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: For Sunshine Law.
CHAIR MOLINA: --yeah, for, for the Sunshine Law.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I have no problem with that.
CHAIR MOLINA: ... (inaudible) ...
as

a-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well,

was

question, Mr. Chair,--

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --is that clarification is what we were actually talking about.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. We're just, for now, we're just on number one on the issue of the applicability of the
Sunshine Law to be included in the Maui County Legislative Package.
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Your Chair had recommended a deferral on this portion. Member Kane has suggested a filing for the
reasons that he stated earlier. The Chair has no objections to filing of the matter as well if that is the will
of the body. Any-COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: --comments? Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: You think it might be more appropriate to go to the item number two, and if
we pass that out then to file the rest and the communication?
CHAIR MOLINA: That's a good question, Mr. Carroll. Staff, can you comment.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: By, by filing this first one, this amendment to the Sunshine Law first or
filing it afterwards with the, the communication after we authorize County, if we do authorize the
County time share.
CHAIR MOLINA: Staff, if you could comment.
MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chair, because this item is a direct referral item, it's a umbrella item that exists in the
Committee of the Whole, there will be no filing of the communication. It would just be a Committee
report that would recommend approval of whichever item or items this body chose to recommend that
the Council approve as their Legislative Package.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Carron. Staff, for further clarification, so a Member has suggested

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No objections to deferral, Chair, of item number one for further discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objections.
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CHAIR MOLINA: No objections to deferral of item number one. Okay. So ordered.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PROPOSAL
SUNSHINE LAW.

REGARDING

APPLICABILITY

OF

THE

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members. We are on now number two, which is to authorize the counties to
establish a time share zoning district. I believe Member Carroll had come up with that proposal or that
consideration. Member Carroll, may I ask for your comments, and then we'll follow up, I believe
Member Johnson had comments. Member Johnson, to be followed by Member Anderson. Member
Carroll, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. As we had in the discussion in meetings before, we feel
this is the best way for the County to have some control over the time shares that we have within the
County. Now, we feel that this Legislation will be the best vehicle for us to achieve the goal of being
able to monitor and fairly deal with the time share industry. Now, I'll tum the time over to the Members.
I think almost everyone is very familiar with this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Carroll. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
I'm, I'm really appreciative that this is before us because
Councilmember Carroll and I had similar thoughts along the same lines that one of the only ways we can
control or consolidate our, our plans and plan our communities and do development is through zoning.
So I think this is entirely appropriate.
I know of some situations where time shares are actually being done

a
know we're undergoing our study
the impacts on the, on
the time share study that, you know, we've helped to fund.
I think it's really important though that we move in this direction, and I know that some counties may
not be supportive of this. But I think it's worth trying to include in the package, and then at least
Member Kane, when he is listening to the discussion, you know, from the other Counties, I think at least
he'll be able to give us some feedback as to what some of the other concerns might be for other, I guess,
for other counties and jurisdictions. But I see this as one way where we can actually have a role in
planning what type of development occurs in what areas. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Mr. Chair. Point of clarification first.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: This is part of the County Package, right? Not the HSAC Package?
CHAIR MOLINA: This is the County Package, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I didn't really know I raised my hand, but I guess, I
guess I could say something. I'm wondering if and maybe, Corp. Counsel, this would be a question for
you. Have you had a chance to review this at all, Traci? I think this was done by Council Services staff.
My question is, I think we already have that power to create a zoning category under HRS 46-4 for time
share.
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I, I have not had a chance to look at that issue. I'd be happy to go back
and take a look at it and get back to the Committee on it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson.

)

areas

(2)

areas

reSlU:enWtU

uses

"

So it seems like we already have the power to do that, but if this bill is to further clarifY the State Statute
regarding time shares and time share units, plans, what-not, I mean I'm happy to support it, but I'm a
little vague on to what its purpose is.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Carroll, do you have a comment at this
time? I saw your hand motioning towards the microphones.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just that in previous meetings when we had this same discussion, the
questions were asked and it was determined at that time that we needed to change State law in order to
be able to accomplish this goal. And that is why this bill has been generated.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Carroll. Committee Members, any other comments or
questions as it relates to the proposal? Which is to authorize the counties to establish a time share
zoning district, which is, which would be part of the Maui County Legislative Package. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Regarding this issue, Mr. Chair, I'm just looking at the October 30th letter from the
American Resort Development Association. And in there, and it's the last document, Members, that's
attached to Item No. 6(2), and in the letters to the, the Chair and the Members of this Committee. And I
guess the question of intent is being questioned regarding the stated justification of the bill. Upheld that,
"The Supreme Court decision cited as justification, Stallard v. Consolidated Maui Inc., upheld the
presumption that the State Legislature's intent was to treat all transient vacation use as identical land
uses, and to either permit or prohibit all uses on an equal basis. Therefore, by creating a separate zoning
district, either to authorize or prohibit timesharing separately from " . (CHANGE TAPE). .. other
transient vacation use, runs contrary to State legislative intent and may raise constitutional law issues."
So forgive me if I didn't hear, I don't know if Member Carroll is able to respond either himself, or if he
has staff that can assist him to help us understand or even Corp. Counsel if, and I think she's already
stated that they are not sure. So, I'm asking this question to see if there's a legitimate issue of
constitutional issues with, with respect to this proposal.
It would help me, and no disrespect to the maker of the, of the proposal, but it would help me have a
better grasp of moving forward with this type of legislation that we have a comfort level from either our
staff and/or our Corporation Counsel to the, to the intent being that of what the State Legislature's intent
was.

case ~!:!!.!!~.!..;...;.~~~~~~~
it
then,
I just
see
contrary to State legislative intent, but if you're changing State
that really matters what the State intended with the original language. So, I'm not sure what kinds of
constitutional law issues they're referring to.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Member Kane foHowed by Member Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Oh, no. I'll yield to Member Carron. But before I do so, I, I heard what he said earlier,
that this was the root in order for us to make sure that we provide clarity, as Member Johnson and
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Member Carroll has stated, that the State, you know, approach to the Legislature is the way that we can
accomplish this.
So all I'm doing is referencing a letter that was sent, trying to understand the intent, and I'm just trying to
get, again, some clarity from our legal as well as from the maker to help provide me with a comfort level
to move forward with this legislation. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Member Carron.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I think Corporation Counsel made it clear and this is
why we have proposed this legislation. And that is, we have to change State law and then, it will no
longer be an issue. And that is why we are proceeding with this bill through the, the process we're going
through now. And I would hope that Members would support this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Committee Members, any other questions or comments
prior to the Chair's recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much. Sorry. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry. I was just thinking that our case for this might be made stronger
after we have the results of the, of the study that's going to be conducted shortly. I'm just wondering
about the timing if we want to introduce this now, so they'll start thinking about it and then reintroduce it
next term or next Legislative Session when we have more of the facts and figures about the impacts of
the time share industry.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Tavares, do you have any information as to when that study win be released? I
seem to

question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I'm just wondering as far as timing with the Legislature, is that
sufficient time for us to get those results over to the Legislature that starts, what, January 20th or so?
And--
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. I guess one option we can consider, Mr. Carroll, to consider as well, is we
could basically with ... , withdraw this proposal for now. When the study comes in and then Mr. Carroll
or whomever can reintroduce this matter for consideration by the State Legislature, that is one
consideration for the body at this point. Mr. Carroll, you have any comments?
MR. CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. We could pursue the path that you just suggested and that was suggested
because we haven't got this study in yet; however, I still think it is appropriate to go out at this time.
The study will be there and I think that I know myself I will be talking to our Legislators that are going
to be making this decision. I will be meeting with them and going over with them in detail why we need
this legislation passed.
And the sooner we get this out, and the sooner we have it on the table, the sooner myself and others who
support this can be working with them to try to convince them that this is what is needed. So, I would
hope that we could pass this out. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Carroll. Member Johnson-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: --followed by Member, excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: May I follow up on, on that comment?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Johnson, Member Anderson if you don't mind, I'll yield to Member Tavares. Go
ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Thank you. I asked the question about, I'm hoping that if we send
this over that somebody is not going to be really disappointed if the Legislature doesn't even consider it
it
and

I also think that we need a really good definition of time share, interval ownership, whatever it's called,
because there are people looking for all the ways to describe the same thing that's not covered in a law.
So it's, it's going to be really hard.
And at the same time, we gotta, you know, be mindful of the folks who, you know, kind of like
kumpang their money together, they buy one house and then they share the, the periods of vacation in
the house. You know, you could have, like I could have ten of my family pool their money together and
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buy one fantastic, you know, log cabin up at Aspen or something, and we each spend a month and three
days there or whatever it may be. Is that become a time share?
We have to think about what that definition of a time share is going to be or this interval ownership, and
you know, figure out a way then, this is going to be, I mean this discussion has been going on for years,
this is not something new. But I think we need to be aware that this discussion will go on and all of
these things will come up again. But I have no objection given the time frame that Mr. Kane described
and the Legislature and their bill deadlines and stuff I have no problem with it going forward to the
Legislature this year, at least get them thinking and discussing it. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Tavares. Committee Members ... I'm sorry, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I was just going to ask if you could make a recommendation and that way
we could-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --input any further discussion,-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --you know, on the record,-CHAIR MOLINA: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --you know, with regard to taking the vote. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Anderson.

want to
happy to go with the body on
needs to
more
and .-no'""",,,,,
for the purpose of allowing the public who's viewing this to know what the heck we're talking about.
I'm going to read into the record the section of the bill or the section of the statute, the State Statute,
which relates to time share zoning that we are being, we are requesting them to amend in this proposal.
It says, "In areas designated for hotel use, resort use, or transient vacation rentals pursuant to County
authority under Section 46-4 or where the County by its legislative process designates hotel, transient,
designates hotel, transient vacation rental or resort use -- and this is the amendment -- provided that if a
County establishes a time share zoning district that allows time share units and time share plans, the
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County may then restrict time share units and time share plans in other zoning districts, including areas
designated for hotel use, resort use, or transient vacation rentals."
So far, we don't have zoning for time sharing, time share or vacation rentals. So, I don't know how that
would apply to us until we choose to do that, but I'm happy to support your recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Member Anderson. Members, any other comments or
questions related to the matter prior to the Chair's recommendation? Seeing none. Members, the Chair
will support adding this to our package at this point. And in the meantime, the Chair would await
comments from Corporation Counsel on the concerns expressed in the letter by ARDA as well. And by
the time the Legislature has, can fully deliberate on this matter, we will have that necessary data to back
the concerns expressed by Members of this Committee with regards to time shares and the category
creating the time share zoning district. So the Chair wiH entertain a motion to approve.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Okay.
It's been moved by Member Carroll, seconded by Member Johnson.
Member Carroll, as the maker of the motion, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. We've had discussions on this in budget, mostly in
budget, I believe, and other places. I think after much thought, this bill was drafted out. I think this is
the way to go and it is appropriate that we do this today. And it's best for Maui County and for all of our
citizens, and I hope to have the support of the Members. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Carroll. Committee Members, any comments or questions as it
relates to the motion on the floor? Member Johnson.

there are components that are
recommendations as well.
And unfortunately, so many times the State doesn't listen to what we put in our Legislative Packages,
whether it's the HSAC Package or whether it's the County Package. I know, on occasion, they have
adopted, you know, measures that we've put forth, but it, it's, you know, other counties may actually and
I didn't realize this wasn't part of the HSAC, I was thinking it was part of that same package. But we
may have actually other counties opposing this. So, who knows? And if for no other reason, I think
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Maui County if we so choose, we should have that right, you know, to at least plan where various
components of our development go in this community. So, thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Any other comments relating to the motion on the
floor? Seeing none. The Chair would like to make one comment and reassure the Committee if we do
encounter some concerns expressed by Corporation Counselor any other concerns along the way, the
Chair is open to taking this matter back to Committee as well. So that being said, the Chair will call for
the vote. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you, Members. The Chair will mark it unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Pontanilla
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE PROPOSAL TO ESTABLISH A TIME SHARE
ZONING DISTRICT FOR INCLUSION IN THE 2006 MAUl
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE PACKAGE.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Well, I believe that takes care of business for today. Members, any announcements?
Seeing none. Chair thanks all of you for your participation today and dedication to duty. It was a very
long but I believe a productive day. We had a lot of healthy discussion. The Chair would like to thank
Staff, as well as the members of the Administration for their input. With that being said, the Committee
Whole, of the Whole meeting for November 1st is adjourned. It is 4:35 .... (gavel) . ..
ADJOURN: 4:35 p.m.

APPROVED BY:

A, Chair
Committee of the Whole
Transcribed by: Ann Freitas

cow:min:051101
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